
 
Haines Borough, Alaska                                                                                    Page 1 
Agenda: November 8, 2016 

Haines Borough 
Borough Assembly Meeting #326 

 AGENDA 
 

 

November 8, 2016 - 6:30 p.m.                             Location: Assembly Chambers, Public Safety Bldg. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE TO THE FLAG/ROLL CALL 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA & CONSENT AGENDA 
[The following Consent Agenda items are indicated by an asterisk (*) and will be enacted by 
the motion to approve the agenda. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless 
an assembly member or other person so requests, in which event the asterisk will be removed 
and that item will be considered by the assembly on the regular agenda.] 

Consent Agenda: 
3 – Approve Assembly Meeting Minutes 
8B – Accept Finance Director’s Report 
8C – Accept Museum Director’s Report 
9A – Accept Library Advisory Board Minutes 
11A1 – Adopt Resolution 16-11-691 

*3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – 10/25/16 Regular and 11/1/16 Special 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Sign-up is NOT required 
[This is for any topics not scheduled for public hearing.] 
Note: during this section of the agenda, the assembly will listen and take notes. No official action 
will be taken at this time. Instead, comments and requests may be referred for further 
consideration to the administration, a committee, or a future assembly agenda.  

5. ASSEMBLY COMMENTS  

6.  MAYOR’S REPORT/COMMENTS 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A.  Ordinance 16-10-446  – First Hearing 
An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Haines Borough Code Title 18 
Subsection 18.30.040(L) to adjust the comprehensive plan review frequency. 
This ordinance is recommended by the borough manager and was introduced on 
10/25/16. The assembly already scheduled the second hearing for 11/29/16. No motion 
is needed now unless the second hearing date needs to change or some other action is 
desired such as amendments. 

8. STAFF/FACILITY REPORTS 
A.  Borough Manager – 11/8/16 Report 

*B.  Finance Director  – FY17 General Fund First Quarter Summary 
*C.  Museum Director  – Report for July-October 2016 

9.  COMMITTEE/COMMISSION/BOARD REPORTS & APPROVED MINUTES 

*A.  Library Advisory Board – Minutes of 8/17/16 Meeting 

B.  Assembly Board Liaison Reports 

C.  Assembly Standing Committee Reports 

10.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 

 

 

Jan Hill 
Mayor 
 
Margaret Friedenauer 
Assembly Member 
 
Heather Lende 
Assembly Member 
 
Mike Case 
Assembly Member 
 
Tresham Gregg 
Assembly Member 
 
Tom Morphet 
Assembly Member 
 
Ron Jackson 
Assembly Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bill Seward 
Borough Manager 

 
Julie Cozzi, MMC 
Borough Clerk 

 
Alekka Fullerton 
Deputy Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 



 
Haines Borough, Alaska                                                                                    Page 2 
Agenda: November 8, 2016 

 

11.  NEW BUSINESS 
A.  Resolutions 

*1.  Resolution 16-11-691 
A Resolution of the Haines Borough authorizing and designating certain persons to sign 
and endorse checks pertaining to the borough’s First National Bank Alaska accounts, 
and authorizing certain persons as signatories for the Borough’s security cash accounts 
and investments. 
This resolution is necessary whenever there is a change in borough officers. In this case, a new 
deputy mayor has been appointed. Motion: Adopt Resolution 16-11-691. 

2.  Resolution 16-11-692 
A Resolution of the Haines Borough authorizing the Borough Manager to execute a 
contract with Pacific Pile & Marine for the Portage Cove Harbor Expansion project for 
an amount not to exceed $13,202,938. 
This resolution is recommended by the director of public facilities and the borough manager. 
Motion: Adopt Resolution 16-11-692. 

3.  Resolution 16-11-693 
A Resolution of the Haines Borough authorizing the Borough Manager to execute a 
contract with Corvus Design for the Portage Cove Interpretive Trail and Harbor Park 
Conceptual Designs project for an amount not to exceed $39,341. 
This resolution is recommended by the director of public facilities and the borough manager. 
Motion: Adopt Resolution 16-11-693. 

B. Ordinances for Introduction - None 

C. Other New Business - None 

12.  CORRESPONDENCE/REQUESTS 

13.  SET MEETING DATES 

14.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

15.  ANNOUNCEMENTS/ASSEMBLY COMMENTS 

16.  ADJOURNMENT 



 
Haines Borough 

Borough Assembly Meeting #325 
October 25, 2016 

 MINUTES 
 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE TO THE FLAG/ROLL CALL:  Mayor HILL called the meeting to order at 
6:30 p.m. in the Assembly Chambers and led the pledge to the flag. 

Present: Mayor Jan HILL, and Assembly Members Diana LAPHAM, Tresham GREGG (via phone), 
Ron JACKSON, Margaret FRIEDENAUER, Mike CASE, and; and Assembly Members-elect Tom 
MORPHET and Heather LENDE.  Absent: George CAMPBELL 

Staff Present:  Bill SEWARD/Borough Manager, Julie COZZI/Borough Clerk, Jila STUART/Finance 
Director, Helen ALTEN/Museum, Shawn BELL/Harbormaster, Albert GIDDINGS/CYD Director, Dean 
OLSEN/Assessor, Tina OLSEN/Accounting Clerk, Krista KIELSMEIER/Executive Assistant to the 
Manager, and Brad RYAN/Director of Public Facilities. 

Visitors Present: John STANG/CVN, Emily FILES/KHNS, Cary SEWARD, Ryan COOK, Bill MCCORD, 
Debra SCHNABEL, Don TURNER Jr., Don TURNER III, Mike DENKER, Paul NELSON, Diana 
LAPHAM, Kyle GRAY, Kay CLEMENTS, Dana HALLETT, Don TURNER III, Heidi ROBICHAUD, Joe 
PARNELL, Colin TAYLOR, Chris OLSEN, John HAGEN, Dennis GUDMUNDSON, JR CHURCHILL, Will 
PRISCIANDARO, Jimmy THOMSEN, Haynes TORMEY, and others. 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA & CONSENT AGENDA 
The following Items were on the published consent agenda indicated by an asterisk (*): 

3 – Approve Assembly Meeting Minutes 
9A – Accept Parks & Rec Committee Minutes and Meeting Summary 
11A1 – Adopt Resolution 16-10-689 

Motion: LAPHAM moved to “approve the agenda/consent agenda,” and it was amended to add Item 
11A1 regarding a possible special election regarding the harbor. The motion, as amended, carried 
unanimously. 

*3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES – 10/11/16  
The motion adopted by approval of the consent agenda: “approve minutes of the 10/11/16 borough 
assembly meeting.”  

4.  2016 BOROUGH ELECTION  
A.   Certification of October 4th Borough Election 

Motion: LAPHAM moved to “declare the October 4, 2016 Borough Election valid and certify the election 
results,” and the motion carried unanimously in a roll call vote. 

B.   Administration of Oath to Newly-Elected Assembly Members  
Mayor HILL administered the oath of office to Assembly Members-elect MORPHET and LENDE.  

LAPHAM made a brief outgoing statement, and LENDE and MORPHET took their seats at the dais. 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

TURNER JR. – Said he was not happy the two new assembly members protested the opening of the 
harbor bids.  

LAPHAM – Read a letter in support of the harbor project. 

HAGEN – Thanked the outgoing assembly members for their service. He spoke in support of the harbor 
project as designed and urged the new assembly members to build on the work of prior assemblies. 

NELSON – Wanted to make sure the assembly was aware of his appeal of the planning commission’s 
decision regarding his harbor appeal.  

GUDMUNDSON – Spoke in support of the harbor as designed. Right now, the harbor is considered the 
most inadequate harbor in Southeast. 

THOMSEN – Supports the harbor and expanded parking lot. It has revenue-generating potential.  

COOK – Said space in the harbor is inadequate, and the plan needs to move forward. 

SCHNABEL – When the assembly endorsed the Haines Harbor as a Clean Harbor, it impacted activities 
that are allowed. She encouraged the borough to keep that in mind. 

Draft 
 

3



October 25, 2016 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 

PARNELL – Spoke against the harbor project as designed. The borough should be tightening belts 
now, and the harbor should have a 200-foot rubble mound 

PRISCIANDARO – Spoke in support of the harbor project.  

TORMEY– Spoke in favor of the harbor project. It is important to his family and the community.  

TAYLOR – Supports the new harbor for our future. 

Fisherman – Spoke in support of the harbor. The steel wall can be turned into a lovely place to be.  

C.OLSEN – Said he is in favor of the harbor. The fishermen are undervalued.  

6.  ASSEMBLY COMMENTS/MAYOR’S COMMENTS 

Assembly Comments: 

CASE – Thanked the outgoing assembly members and congratulated the newly-elected members. He 
reminded this is a representative government. He is gratified with the fishermen in attendance. 

FRIEDENAUER – Asked for a response to NELSON’s comment about his appeal. SEWARD explained 
the appeal was received and is following an administrative course outlined in code.  

LENDE– Said she supports a new harbor but is concerned about the costs of maintenance, etc. She 
doesn’t know that this plan is what is needed.   

Mayor’s Comments: 

HILL reported on the progress of AP&T’s project to lay fiber optic cable.  She recently joined the 
Juneau and Skagway mayors in Skagway for a celebration of the first section of cable. This project is 
expected to improve our Internet service. 

The mayor asked the assembly members to give consideration to what committees they wish to 
serve on. She announced her appointment of Mike Case as her deputy mayor for the next year, and 
she wants to make committee and liaison appointments very soon.  

7.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Ordinance 16-09-444 – Second Hearing 
An Ordinance of the Haines Borough determining whether recently foreclosed properties 
deeded to the borough shall be retained for a public purpose or sold. 
Mayor HILL opened and closed the public hearing at 7:14 pm; there were no public comments. 

Motion: FRIEDENAUER moved to “adopt Ordinance 16-09-444,” and the motion carried unanimously in a 
roll call vote. 

8.  STAFF/FACILITY REPORTS 
A. Borough Manager – 10/25/16 Report 

The manager summarized his written report and responded to a few questions from the assembly. 

9.  COMMITTEE/COMMISSION/BOARD REPORTS & APPROVED MINUTES 
A.   Tourism Advisory Board – Minutes of 9/9/16 & Letter with Specific Assembly Requests 

Motion: FRIEDENAUER moved to “direct the borough manager to create a Haines Highway working group 
to support efforts to maintain safe access to the Chilkat River for local and commercial use,” and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

Motion: FRIEDENAUER moved to “direct the manager to work with the appropriate state agencies to 
address the speed limit at Picture Point,” and motion carried unanimously.  

B. Assembly Board Liaison Reports 
CASE – Library Advisory Board 
JACKSON – Heliskiing Map Committee and Parks & Recreation Advisory Committee 

C. Assembly Standing Committee Reports 

10.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None 

11.  NEW BUSINESS 
A. Discussion of a Possible Special Election Concerning the Harbor Project.  

[This item was added during approval of the agenda.] 



October 25, 2016 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 

MORPHET distributed a draft resolution and draft advisory vote question. He wants a voter 
endorsement of the harbor project.  COZZI explained the code requirement that a resolution has 
to first be published with an agenda. 

Motion: MORPHET moved to “schedule a special meeting to take place in three days.” 

Primary Amendment: MORPHET moved to “amend the motion to change the three days to one 
week,” and the motion FAILED 3-4 in a tie vote with CASE, FRIEDENAUER, and JACKSON opposed 
and the mayor breaking the tie in the negative. 

The main motion FAILED 3-4 in a tie vote with CASE, FRIEDENAUER, and JACKSON opposed and the 
mayor breaking the tie in the negative. 

The mayor said the draft resolution would be on the November 8 agenda. 

B. Ordinances for Introduction 
1. Ordinance 16-10-445 

An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Borough Code Subsection 
5.18.080(I)(b) to clarify the membership makeup of heliski map amendment 
committees.  

Motion: LENDE moved to “introduce Ordinance 16-10-445 and schedule a first public hearing for 11/8/16 
and a second hearing for 11/29/16.”  

Motion to Refer: JACKSON moved to “refer Ordinance 16-10-445 to the Tourism Advisory Board,” and 
the motion carried unanimously.  

*2. Ordinance 16-10-446 
An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Haines Borough Code Title 18 
Subsection 18.30.040(L) to adjust the comprehensive plan review frequency.  

The motion adopted by approval of the consent agenda:  “Introduce Ordinance 16-10-446 and 
set a first public hearing for 11/8/16 and a second public hearing for 11/29/16.” 

C. Other New Business 

1.  Ordinance 16-01-429  
An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Haines Borough Code Section 
18.30.040 to adjust code to match the actual planning commission meeting start time 
and to revise the review process for capital improvements and borough projects. 
Note: a version of the ordinance was introduced on 1/26/16. Public hearings were held on 2/9 
and 3/8. Following the second hearing, the ordinance was substituted with a draft proposed by 
the administration. It was subsequently referred back to the planning commission for review. 
On 10/13, the planning commission voted to recommend a revision, and a new substitute 
ordinance was submitted for assembly consideration prior to adoption.   

Motion: CASE moved to “adopt the substitute Ordinance 16-01-429 proposed by the Planning Commission.” 

Primary Amendment: MORPHET moved to “change $100,000 to $25,000 and replace “facilities” 
with “structures.”  

Motion to Postpone: FRIEDENAUER moved to “postpone this to the November 29 assembly meeting 
pending more information from the planning commission,” and the motion carried 4-2 with LENDE and 
MORPHET opposed. 

2.   Sales Tax Exemption Request – Boy Scout Troop 984 (North Oldham Baptist Church) 

Motion: CASE moved to “approve the request from Boy Scout Troop 984 (North Oldham Baptist Church in 
Kentucky) for sales tax exemption status, and authorize the borough clerk to issue an exemption 
certificate,” and the motion carried 4-2 in a roll call vote with LENDE and MORPHET opposed. 

3.   Appointment/Confirmation of FY17 ad hoc Community Funding Scoring Committee 
Note: the borough accepted grant applications from community nonprofit organizations seeking 
FY17 funding. Nine applications were received by the 5pm 10/19 deadline. The instructions 
stipulated the applications would be scored by an ad hoc committee composed of the mayor, 
three members of the assembly, and the borough manager or his designee. The mayor sought 
assembly volunteers during this meeting. 



October 25, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 

Motion: JACKSON moved to “confirm the members of the FY17 ad hoc Community Funding Scoring 
Committee, as follows:  

Mayor Hill 
Assembly Members GREGG, CASE, and LENDE. 
Deputy Clerk Alekka Fullerton (Borough Manager’s designee).” 

The motion carried unanimously. 

12.  CORRESPONDENCE/REQUESTS  

A.  Harbor Project Comments – E. Vignola 
B. Appreciates Borough’s Position re. Ferries/Juneau Road – Juneau Citizen, M. Stopha 
C. Thanks for Support – Southeast Conference 

13. SET MEETING DATES  

A.   Committee of the Whole - Wednesday 11/2, 6-8pm – Topic(s): 1) Revenue & Expenditures 
overview and recommendations; 6-7pm, and 2) Harbor Discussion and Presentation of Bid 
Proposal; 7-8pm. 

Motion: FRIEDENAUER moved to “reschedule the first meeting in November from the 9th back to the 
8th,” and the motion carried unanimously. 

14. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

TURNER Jr. – Clarified the funding for the Sport Fish Ramp.  

TURNER III – Said he is disappointed the first thing the new assembly members did was to try to 
bypass the public process by bringing a resolution without notice.   

SCHNABEL – Said she is encouraged the public is being heard about budgeting.  Regarding projects, 
people want the borough to work under the same rules the public has to work under.  

KIELSMEIER – Said she is concerned about the assembly having a meeting on election night. She 
encouraged future consideration of that when scheduling meetings. 

15. ANNOUNCEMENTS/ASSEMBLY COMMENTS 

MORPHET – Responded to TURNER III’s comment (under item 14).  The essence of the resolution is 
to include people in the process by providing an opportunity for voting.  

FRIEDENAUER – Thanked KIELSMEIER for reminding about early voting.  

LENDE – Expressed excitement to be on the assembly. She thanked the PD for the recent drug bust.  

CASE – Reminded Lynn Canal Counseling does a good job with issues such as drug issues. 

JACKSON – Welcomed the new assembly members.  

16. ADJOURNMENT – 9:34 p.m. 

Motion: CASE moved to “adjourn the meeting,” and the motion carried unanimously.   
 
 
       ____________________________ 

ATTEST:       Janice Hill, Mayor 
 
__________________________________ 
Julie Cozzi, MMC, Borough Clerk 



Haines Borough 
Borough Assembly SPECIAL Meeting 

November 1, 2016 
 MINUTES 

 

THIS SPECIAL MEETING WAS HELD SOLELY FOR CONSIDERING THE ITEMS LISTED ON THE 
PUBLISHED AGENDA. NO ADDITIONAL ISSUES WERE CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING.   

1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE TO THE FLAG:  Mayor HILL called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. in 
the Assembly Chambers and led the pledge to the flag. 

2. ROLL CALL 
Present:  Mayor Jan HILL, and Assembly Members Heather LENDE, Margaret FRIEDENAUER, Ron 
JACKSON, Tresham GREGG, Mike CASE, and Tom MORPHET.  
Staff Present:  Bill SEWARD/Borough Manager, Brad RYAN/Director of Public Facilities, Julie 
COZZI/Borough Clerk, Jila STUART/Finance Director, Leslie ROSS/Tourism Director, Tina 
OLSEN/Accounting Clerk, Shawn BELL/Harbormaster, and Gabe THOMAS/Assistant Harbormaster. 

Visitors Present:  John STANG/CVN, Emily FILES/KHNS, Dick SOMERVILLE/PND Engineers, Bill 
THOMAS/Borough Lobbyist, Don TURNER Jr., Diana LAPHAM, Cary SEWARD, Don TURNER III, 
Norm SMITH, Rob GOLDBERG, Haynes TORMEY, Mike DENKER, Scott SUNDBERG, John HAGEN, 
Lori SMITH, Brent CROWE, Jerry ERNY, Bill MCCORD, Andrew GRAY, Mike GANEY, Dean RISLEY, 
Diane LaCOURSE, Jenny Lynn SMITH, Mike FALVEY, Norman HUGHES, Mary ASPER, Sean 
GAFFNEY, Anne BOYCE, Richard CHAPELL, Ray STASKA, Terry PARDEE, Dave LONG, Will 
PRISCIANDARO, Jack SMITH, Dennis GUDMUNDSON, Stuart DEWITT, Paul NELSON, Joe 
PARNELL, Kathleen MENKE, Bill KURZ, Ryan COOK, Jimmy THOMSEN, Bill ROSTAD, Bill BROSTE, 
Douglas OLERUD, Fred GRAY, and others. 

3. APPROVAL OF SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

Motion: LENDE moved to “approve the special meeting agenda,” and the motion carried unanimously. 

The mayor provided SOMERVILLE of PND Engineers an opportunity to give a brief presentation to 
explain the harbor project and costs.  

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Speaking in Opposition to Resolution  Speaking in Support of Resolution 

TURNER Jr. HAGEN NELSON 

ERNY SUNDBERG PARNELL 

LAPHAM COOK MENKE 

GOLDBERG CROWE N.SMITH 

PARDEE OLSEN LaCOURSE 

B.THOMAS OLERUD KURZ 

ROSTAD HUGHES BOYCE 

LONG GAFFNEY   

TURNER III DEWITT   

THOMSEN J.SMITH   

ROSS RYAN   

TORMEY GUDMUNDSON   

J.L.SMITH A.GRAY   

PRISCIANDARO    

Draft 



November 1, 2016-Special Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 

 
5. BUSINESS 

A.   Resolution 16-11-690 
A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly calling for a special election as allowed by 
HBC 11.12.020(A) for the purpose of submitting to Haines Borough voters an advisory 
question pertaining to the Portage Cove Harbor Design 

Note: This resolution was drafted by Assembly Member Morphet and submitted to the borough 
assembly on October 25, 2016. The borough clerk put the document into the borough’s normal 
format and combined the proposed advisory question and the resolution into the same document. 
Otherwise, the text was essentially unchanged. 
  

Motion: MORPHET moved to "adopt Resolution 16-11-690,” and the motion FAILED 3-4 in a roll call vote 
with CASE, FRIEDENAUER, and JACKSON opposed and Mayor HILL breaking the tie in the negative. 

Motion: FRIEDENAUER moved to “direct staff to develop a comprehensive public process and input plan in 
determining how to use excess grant funding for the Portage Cove Small Boat Harbor expansion and in 
planning and designing the elements of future phases of the project with a draft of the plan to come to the 
assembly no later than the first meeting in January,” and the motion carried unanimously. 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

F.GRAY – Said the Port and Harbor Advisory Committee had many public meetings, and there has 
been a public process. 

GOLDBERG – Explained an alternative idea involving a shorter rubble mound was discussed but it would 
make the basin too small. The harbor would not be big enough. He noted that it you want to make 
people angry propose to change something. 

TURNER Jr. – Expressed thanks for not adopting the resolution. 

A.GRAY – It is important to trust professionals, like the engineers. 

BROSTE – Explained his reasons for wanting to give his allotted 3-minute comment time to B.THOMAS. 
[Note: during Item 4 Public Comments, Mr. Thomas ran out of time before completing his statement, and 
several individuals had offered up their own time. This was not favorably looked upon by some in the 
audience.] 

7. ASSEMBLY COMMENTS  

SEWARD – Explained he is the one who invited SOMERVILLE to attend this meeting, and he thanked 
him for his input. 

CASE – Thanked the public for coming to the meeting to express comments both for and against. 

MORPHET – Said he doesn’t believe the proper process was followed for the harbor project, especially 
appropriate involvement by the planning commission. He plans to introduce an ordinance that says 
once the borough plans to spend more than $5m on a project, it will require a vote of the people.  

LENDE – Thanked everyone for coming. She encouraged them to stay engaged for the rest of the 
project, and encouraged the assembly to keep everything as public and transparent, as possible. 

8. ADJOURNMENT– 5:20p.m. 

Motion:  FRIEDENAUER moved to “adjourn the meeting,” and the motion carried unanimously.   

 
 
       _________________________ 

ATTEST:       Janice Hill, Mayor 
 
 
________________________________ 
Julie Cozzi, MMC, Borough Clerk  

 
 



Haines Borough
Assembly Agenda Bill

Agenda Bill No.:  
Assembly Meeting Date:  

Business Item Description: Attachments:
Subject:

Originator:

Originating Department:

Date Submitted:

Full Title/Motion:

Administrative Recommendation:

Fiscal Impact:

Expenditure Required Amount Budgeted Appropriation Required Projected Impact to Future 
Operating Budgets

$ $ $

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Review:
Comp Plan Goals/Objectives:

Consistent: Yes     No

Summary Statement:

Referral:
Referred to: Referral Date:
Recommendation: Meeting Date:

Assembly Action:
Meeting Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s):

Postponed to Date:

16-689
11/8/16

Reviews of the Comprehensive Plan

Borough Manager

8/18/16

1. Ordinance 16-10-446

The assembly already scheduled the second hearing on this ordinance for 11/29/16. No motion is needed now
unless the second hearing date needs to change or some other action is desired such as amendments.

n/a n/a n/a

Borough code currently requires the Planning Commission to undertake an overall review of the Comprehensive Plan
at least once every two years. The Borough Manager recommended to the Planning Commission that this be
changed to a more realistic five years. On 10/13, the Commission considered that recommendation and decided to
suggest amending code to make it every SIX years.

This is only a minimum requirement. There is nothing in code that would prevent a review taking place sooner if
deemed necessary.

n/a

Planning Commission by Manager
A six-year review cycle 10/13/16

11/8, 11/29/1610/25, 11/8/16

Change Frequency of Planning Commission

7A



HAINES BOROUGH, 
ALASKA ORDINANCE No. 

16-10-446 
An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Haines Borough Code Title 18 
Subsection 18.30.040(L) to adjust the comprehensive plan review frequency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY: 

Section 1. Classification.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and the 
adopted amendment shall become a part of the Haines Borough Code. 

Section 2.  Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or any application thereof to any 
person or circumstance is held to be invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application 
to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance is effective upon adoption.  

Section 4.   Amendment of Subsection 18.30.040(L).  Subsection 18.30.040(L) of the Haines 
Borough Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED  

18.30.040 Planning commission.  

L. A comprehensive plan is a compilation of policy statements and maps for guiding the 
physical, social and economic development, both private and public of the borough, and may 
include, but is not limited to, the following: statements of policies, goals, standards, a land use 
plan, a lands classification plan and requirements for disposal of borough lands, a community 
facilities plan, a transportation plan, coastal development and management plan, and 
recommendations for plan implementations. The assembly shall be guided in the adoption of the 
comprehensive plan by the recommendations of the planning commission. The assembly may 
modify the plan, provided it first obtains the recommendations of the planning commission. The 
planning commission shall undertake the overall review of the plan at least once every two six 
years and shall present recommendations based on the review to the assembly. 

ADOPTED BY A DULY CONSTITUTED QUORUM OF THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY THIS ____ 
DAY OF _________, 2016. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST: Janice Hill, Mayor 

____________________________ 
Julie Cozzi, MMC, Borough Clerk 

Date Introduced:   10/25/16  
Date of First Public Hearing:   11/08/16 
Date of Second Public Hearing: 11/29/16 

Draft 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date: 11/3/2016 
 
To: Mayor and Borough Assembly 
From: William E. Seward, Borough Manager 
Re: Manager’s Report 

 

FACILITIES/PUBLIC WORKS 

 Installed a “Belly Blade on the sanding truck” 
 Finished up putting winter tires on borough vehicles 
 Shipped the derelict vehicles to Seattle.  
 General cleanup for winter, taking down banners, putting up snow-flakes, etc. 
 Replaced rotten “Man-Door” and large section of back wall on the Lily Lake water plant. 
 Continue the annual maintenance of water shut offs. 

 
HARBOR 

 
 Beached the Letnikof ramp float and discovered some damage where the pile hoops connect. 

Should be repairable in house. 
 Actively taking part in Lutak Design meetings while R&M is in town. 
 Continuing to work on the Harbor Expansion and providing any needed info to committees 

and assembly. 

POOL 
 

 Finished wiring up the air handlers. 

WATER/SEWER 

 Continued the annual shut-off of water for seasonal residents. 
 We have completed bid documents for the Waste Water Treatment Plant Phase I.   
 Completed roof replacement on the Tower Road Water Tank. 

POLICE 
 

 ALICE Training (Active Shooter Instructor Training) will begin on Nov. 7th 2016. 

 NIXLE is up and running – user will start receiving NWS alerts as well as public safety related information. 
o FEMA – IPAWS Application Submitted. 
o AP&T data transmitted to Nixle rep. to support call back messaging. 

 Met with DOC Commissioner Williams on Tuesday Nov. 1, 2016; explored opportunities to shift State 
services to local level while preserving current resource levels.  
 

 

Report 
from the  

Borough Manager 
 
 

8A



 
 

LANDS 

Assessing  

 October transfer of ownership deeds processed with 65 total changes this fiscal year.  
 Property Data Collector position filled & fieldwork scheduled to start 11-07-16. 
 Annual review of construction declarations & building permits is in progress for percent 

completion of projects. (on going until completed). 
 Document prep for Lot 16A Carr’s Cove ownership issue completed by legal and forwarded to 

contesting land owner. Assessor is waiting for reply confirming resolution. 

Planning & Zoning 

 Accomplished: (1) Prep work and research for Harbor Expansion Permit appeals for Planning 
Commission Oct 13 Appeals; (2) Three water/sewer permits; (3) Waterfront Aesthetics 
Committee Meeting; (4) Broadband RFP Review. 

 Planning Commission:  
o Finalizing Meeting Minutes and Draft Findings of Fact for three appeals Oct. 13. 
o Draft of Addendum for Harbor Expansion Permit listing phase I components. 
o Coastal Management Workshop Prep Nov. 3. 
o Draft agenda for Nov. 10, which includes: Coastal Management revision 

recommendations, Height Restriction zones recommendations, Changes to ADU 
code to make Haines more ‘tiny house-friendly,’ report on Bear Tracts / FAA ROW. 

o Finalizing contract with Sheinberg Associates re: Comp Plan Review. 
 Merging lists of phone numbers and addresses for NIXLE program. 
 Working with Heli-ski Committee to create map with proposed changes to Heli-ski map. 
 GIS Needs Assessment (Parcel Viewer Update, addressing, utilities, parcel edits).  
 Research: What, Why, How, Cost, & Possible Funding for a Haines Economic Development 

Plan – working with Chamber. 
 Work with TAB/Leslie to propose solutions, private or govt, to summertime public 

transportation to and from Ferry Terminal. 
 Property descriptions for Borough Biomass land transfer to B. Ryan. 
 Property descriptions for Facilities & Borough wireless project. 

Library 
 

 To kick off the week of the Bald Eagle Festival, Joe Ordonez will present a program of 
photos and stories based on his book Where Eagles Gather:  The Story of the Chilkat Bald 
Eagle Preserve on November 14th at 7pm. Books will be available for purchase. 

 The Friends of the Library are planning and preparing for the annual Lighting of the 
Library. This event is scheduled for Saturday, November 26 from 4-6. There will be a silent 
auction of small Christmas trees.  Those wishing to decorate and donate a tree for the 
auction can call the library. 

 The director has been working on final reports for the IMLS Basic and Public Library 
Assistance grants and an interim report for the IMLS Enhancement grant in addition to the 
Alaska State Library and IMLS annual statistical and financial report. 

 Beginning November 28th, library hours will be Monday – Thursday 10-8, Friday 10-6, 
Saturday and Sunday 12:30-4:30.  



 The library is currently advertising to fill two positions - custodian and education/cultural 
coordinator.  We will also have 2 open board seats by the end of November so we are 
recruiting to fill these spots. 

 For the 8th year in a row, the Haines Library has been designated a STAR Library by Library 
Journal.  The star rating is based on circulation, visits, program attendance, and public 
internet use per capita.   



1 of 2

HAINES BOROUGH
FY17 GENERAL FUND Preliminary Revenue & Expenditures SUMMARY by FUND
FOR THE QUARTER ENDING 09/30/2016

01 AREAWIDE GENERAL FUND

9/30/2015 9/30/2016 Yr to Yr FY17 BUDGET % OF
ACTUAL ACTUAL VARIANCE* BUDGET VARIANCE* BGT

REVENUE
Property Tax Revenue 430,109$         393,698$          (36,411)$          1,602,293         (1,208,595)$    25%
Sales Tax 202,658           219,757            17,099             632,000            (412,243)         35%
State Revenue - Revenue Sharing 482,655           320,546            (162,109)          320,500            46                   100%
State Revenue - Raw Fish Tax -                  -                    -                   191,700            (191,700)         0%
State Revenue - Other 19,951             14,390              (5,560)              54,785              (40,395)           26%
Federal Revenue - P.I.L.T. 317,302           348,013            30,711             309,900            38,113            112%
Federal Revenue - Timber Receipts -                  -                    -                   29,700              (29,700)           0%
Federal Revenue - Library -                  11,200              11,200             50,655              (39,455)           22%
Investment Income 20,159             26,627              6,468               110,000            (83,373)           24%
Rents 18,305             12,591              (5,714)              104,609            (92,018)           12%
User Fees 14,852             19,128              4,276               72,706              (53,578)           26%
Penalty & Interest - PropertyTax 16,520             14,728              (1,792)              32,000              (17,272)           46%
Penalty & Interest - Sales Tax 4,431               5,233                802                  30,000              (24,767)           17%
Business Licenses 1,450               2,175                725                  13,000              (10,825)           17%
Miscellaneous Fines & Fees 5,683               3,342                (2,341)              26,000              (22,658)           13%
Sale of Fixed Asset 13,609             -                    (13,609)            25,000              (25,000)           0%

1,547,684$      1,391,428$       (156,256)$        3,604,848$       (2,213,420)$    39%

EXPENDITURES
Salaries and wages 375,238$         405,500$          (30,262)$          1,583,963$       1,178,463$     26%
Employee Burden 109,513           119,056            (9,542)              484,471            365,415          25%
Health Insurance 87,440             91,417              (3,976)              418,870            327,453          22%
Supplies & Postage 18,785             19,559              (775)                 67,433              47,874            29%
Material & Equipment 8,767               7,156                1,611               28,210              21,054            25%
Computers and Peripherals 5,897               8,199                (2,302)              47,110              38,911            17%
Professional & Contractual 131,325           113,104            18,221             360,923            247,819          31%
Dues, Subscriptions & Fees 2,839               2,805                34                    8,125                5,320              35%
Travel & Per Diem 13,381             6,099                7,281               46,300              40,201            13%
Training 3,463               2,736                727                  14,790              12,054            18%
Advertising 3,500               2,611                889                  8,440                5,830              31%
Banking & Insurance 10,703             10,926              (223)                 47,400              36,474            23%
Vehicle Expense 1,685               2,896                (1,212)              9,550                6,654              30%
Utilities 36,331             40,195              (3,865)              219,900            179,705          18%
School District - Instructional 390,000           390,000            -                   1,560,000         1,170,000       25%
School District - Activities 52,508             52,500              8                      210,000            157,500          25%
Appropriations from the Assembly -                  -                    -                   32,500              32,500            0%

8B



2 of 2

9/30/2015 9/30/2016 Yr to Yr FY17 BUDGET % OF
ACTUAL ACTUAL VARIANCE* BUDGET VARIANCE* BGT

Building Maintenance & Repairs 2,106               3,079                (973)                 39,500              36,421            8%
Discretionary Expense 281                  132                   149                  2,050                1,918              6%
Work Orders (24,434)           (62,323)             37,889             (112,800)          (50,477)           55%
Allocations (186,171)         (199,695)           13,524             (799,471)          (599,776)         25%
Operating Transfers - In fr CPV (1,950)             -                    (1,950)              -                   -                  
Operating Transfers - OUT fr General 13,467             16,534              (3,067)              66,135              49,601            25%
Operating Transfers - In fr Permanent (70,250)           (73,250)             3,000               (293,000)          (219,750)         25%
TOTAL AREAWIDE EXPENDITURES 984,421           959,236            25,185             4,050,399         3,091,163       24%

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 563,263$         432,192$          (131,071)$        (445,551)$        877,743$        

02 TOWNSITE SERVICE AREA 

REVENUE
Property Tax Revenue 102,978           109,113            6,135$             436,000            (326,887)$       25%
Sales Tax 194,297           190,195            (4,102)              720,000            (529,805)         26%
State Revenue - Public Safety 54,934             53,989              (945)                 219,734            (165,745)         25%
State Revenue - General 91,900             60,500              (31,400)            60,500              -                  100%
Interest Earnings 513                  536                   23                    1,500                (964)                36%
Miscellaneous Fines & Fees 850                  390                   (460)                 6,000                (5,610)             7%
TOTAL TOWNSITE REVENUES 445,472           414,723            (30,749)            1,443,734         (1,029,011)      29%

EXPENDITURES
Salaries & Wages 116,500$         146,941$          (30,440)$          518,833$          371,892$        28%
Employee Burden 30,156             44,893              (14,737)            171,866            126,973          26%
Health Insurance 19,575             27,678              (8,103)              126,528            98,850            22%
Supplies & Postage 1,428               2,788                (1,361)              6,200                3,412              45%
Material & Equipment 30,529             26,016              4,512               111,700            85,684            23%
Computers & Peripherals 187                  3,479                (3,292)              3,500                21                   99%
Professional & Contractual 19,393             13,405              5,988               74,891              61,486            18%
Dues & Subscriptions 208                  300                   (92)                   1,250                950                 24%
Travel & Per Diem 5,623               12,165              (6,543)              25,950              13,785            47%
Training -                  2,868                (2,868)              7,500                4,632              38%
Advertising 119                  1,499                (1,380)              1,250                (249)                120%
Banking & Insurance 4,924               4,928                (4)                     21,070              16,142            23%
Vehicle Expense 16,669             6,043                10,626             78,850              72,807            8%
Utilities 12,800             13,569              (769)                 68,050              54,481            20%
Work Orders (50,555)           (29,664)             (20,891)            (84,200)            (54,536)           35%
Allocations 93,561             98,463              (4,902)              386,383            287,920          25%
Operating Transfers - OUT from TSA (8,304)             12,500              (20,804)            50,000              37,500            25%
TOTAL TOWNSITE EXPENSES 292,813           387,873            (95,060)            1,569,621         1,181,748       25%

NET REVENUE UNDER EXPENDITURES 152,659$         26,850$            (125,809)$        (125,887)$        152,737$        

*Positive variance is favorable.  Negative variance is unfavorable.



Haines Sheldon Museum 
Director’s Report: July‐October 2016 
 
JULY 

Visitor count:  2085 
Volunteer hours:  193.25 
Children’s Programs: (2 camps, Jr. Ranger Day) 105 
Research Requests:  17   
Cash Deposits:  $ 18,717.42 
Sales (Admissions and Store): Square reported 1205 transactions for total net sales of $13,512.79 
Museum Passes Report: For the months of May/June 2016: $9616.00 = 601 passes 
     □ Sheldon Museum 258 passes 
    □ Eagle Foundation 204 passes 
      □ Hammer Museum 125 Passes 
      □ Visitor Center 14 passes 
Education, Public Programs, Events and Staff Training 

 July 1, 2016 First Friday: Potluck for Amy Lowery 

 July 11‐15, 2016 Night Science Camp, Grades 3‐5 (10 students);  

 July 18‐22, 2016 Preschool Camp (7 students) 

 July 21, 2016 Junior Ranger Day: 2 staff provided craft activities to 20 children in Skagway. 

 July 23, 2016 Volunteer Appreciation Tea: Attended by 17 

o Designed and ordered invitations ‐ mailed to 55 volunteers  

o Made cookies and scones. 

o Created gift bags for the volunteers. 

 
Marketing 

 Prepared newsletter for August 2016 

 Designed and submitted marketing for Totem Trot: What’s Up Yukon, Chilkat Valley News, 
Skagway News, Capital City Weekly, and Onscreen Advertising  

 Began updating Sheldon Museum’s TripAdvisor Page  

 One staff person at the dock on Wednesdays (and on Tuesday July 5) to promote the museum to 
the large ships.  

 Printed and distributed Totem Trot and Lyn Fabio Exhibit posters 

 We received our first benefactor membership. 
 

Administration:   

 Paid Sales tax of $221.84 for June.  

 Sent back Cisco Aironet and related equipment 

 Packaged and shipped back First Data equipment 

 Wrote Gallery Volunteer Procedures and updated museum floor plan 

 Closed museum in the afternoons and all staff volunteered at the State Fair Fair 7/28 & 7/29 

 Purchased a Wager multiuse ladder for high areas (to eliminate safety concerns).  

 Finishing reports and began closing out grants. 

 Amy Lowery (intern) last day on July 1. 

 Olivia Havens (intern) arrived July 4. 

 Sarah (Aly) Zeiger started work as Museum Assistant in Collections on July 21. 

8C



 July 15, Helen attending mother’s funeral service. 

Fundraising: 

 Museum Store:  
o Continued work on Square Procedures 

o Working on glitches with Square: Power booster did not work and we returned for 

refund 

o Ordered DVD White Fang, new items from 907 Clothing Company, re‐ordered knives, 

and scarfs from ACE, ordered new items from Trickster, and from Safari. Waiting on 

order from Native Northwest. 

o Working on square reports. Has been a challenge to create needed reports. 

 Totem Trot:   

o Totem Trot revenue to date: $10,345.51, (Income $ 1538.51, Expenses $504.00) 

o Board Presentation: what has been accomplished and what still needs to be done   

o T‐Shirts: Designed and Ordered from Shtumpa 

o Posters: Mailed posters to Kristine Harder for Skagway distribution  

o Totem Booklet: Researched printing solutions for a future Totems of Haines Booklet  

o Volunteers: Began compiling the list of volunteers for the Totem Trot  

o Pasta Dinner: Requested and received $200 donation from IGA for pasta feed 

o Silent Auction: Created a table to keep track of donations 

o Website updates:  
 Added page for corporate sponsorships of totem poles, created charity page 

through race entry so that totem pole sponsorships can be made online. 
 Updated the poles on the website to include the museum pole, ferry terminal, 

Foletti Family Pole, Picture Point pole, and updated the write‐up for the 
Heinmiller pole to include edits made by Lee Heinmiller in 2015.  

 Deleted the tab to sponsor a runner because race entry automatically creates 
pages for the different runners and having a tab would be a redundancy. 

 Deleted the tab for prizes because that is not what we are doing this year.  
 Updated the race day event schedule on the website and added information 

about the pasta feed on the website. 
o Other Marketing:   

 Sent emails through Mailchimp to all past participants and our regular mailing 
list, notifying them of the upcoming event and the Pasta dinner.  

 Submitted the event to the Alaska Runners event calendar, and emailed various 
running groups in Alaska to put on their calendars and to promote to runners in 
their groups.  

 Created cards detailing how to sponsor a totem pole online for the board 
members to give to different businesses, and put up posters around town 
advertising the event.  

 Posted on the community website encouraging people to sign up for the totem 
trot before July 16th when the price increases.  

 Contacted the owners of the Eagle Foundation Pole, Martin family Pole, Foletti 
Family Pole, Heinmiller Family Pole, and Haines Real‐estate pole for permission 
to use their totem poles and all agreed.   

 Gaming permit: setting up new Gaming bank account.  

 



Exhibits: 

 New Children’s Room:  

o Cut out mountains and patched an overcut in the silhouette.  
o Began painting the ceiling blue.  
o Went over floor repairs with Dan Humphrey to get a quote on how much it will cost for 

time and materials to fix the floor and tear out the shelves.  
o Created a way to store the textiles in K1 and K2 in the new archives, removing them 

from the children’s room.  

 Lyn Fabio Exhibit: 

o Designed graphics, prepared labels and text, purchased materials for exhibit 

o Replaced burned out lights in the Hakkinen Gallery  

 Outdoor Exhibits:  

o Discussed outdoor exhibit estimates with Commercial Signs and Printing 

o Olivia and Madeline started working on design of outdoor panels for apple tree, totem 

pole and Haines‐Fairbanks pipeline valve. 

 Archives Exhibit: Olivia began research for an exhibit on the wall of the archives research room.  
Potential theme: “Building a Town  

 Updated signage around the museum.   

 Haines 50 Exhibit: Hot glued pictures back onto their descriptions in the Haines 50 exhibit.  
 

Collections and Archives 

 Reference Requests:   

o Completed transaction for the reproduction of SMCC images in a free Audubon Alaska 

publication 

o Significant research on Porcupine Mining District for new TV reality show 

o Some examples of other requests: Haines House, Eldred Rock, Chilkoot Barracks, 

yearbooks. 

 Cataloged a box of Alaska Sportsman magazines, Issues July 1950 through June 1954. Half 
finished “Alaska Sportsman 1954‐1957” too.   

 Alaska Indian Arts: 
o Natalie Pardee scanned images into Pastperfect.  
o Sleeved most of the photographs in order to handle them safely. Numbers from 

approximately 2016.029.0750 to .1170 are still in their original envelopes and still 
require accessioning and sleeves.   

o Organized photos by accession number and noted any similarities in the photos.  
o Corrected mistakes in Pastperfect. Relatively few given the sheer volume of the project. 

 Textiles Move: Created a new hanging method in the new compactor units. Transferred about 
half of the rolled textiles downstairs. Changed locations in the database. 

 Accessioned and documented the poster boards from the collections room storage (J28) into 
Past Perfect. They still need to be photographed.  

 Updated the fee schedule for archives and collections services. 2011 prices were slightly higher 

than our current ones. Following the Alaska State Museums model, made equivalent fees for 

physical and digital copies. 

 Received invoice for Price Helmet and sent copy to grantors.  

 KHNS History Talks, 8:45‐9 a.m. every other Tuesday morning:  Haines 50: #30, 7/19: Haines 50: 

#19   



AUGUST 

Visitor count:  2,178 
Volunteer hours:  295 
Programs: 204 
Cash Deposits:  $ 16,785.04 
Sales (Admissions and Store):  Square: 1,299 transactions for $15,484.25 total net sales 
Museum Passes: July 2016: $11,472.00 for 717 passes 
    □ Sheldon Museum 384 passes 
    □ Eagle founda on 197 passes 
    □ Hammer 132 Passes 
    □ Visitor center 4 passes 

Education, Public Programs, Events and Staff Training   

 First Friday: Potluck for Amy Lowery’s good‐bye party 

 Apple Activities: 3rd Grade on August 29. 

 Totem Trot Pasta Dinner August 12. 38 attended. 

 Totem Trot Race August 13. 45 attended. 

 
Administration:   

 Madeline on vacation August 16‐31, 2016. 

 Three staff finished in August: Jackie St. Claire (August 19), Dave Dzenawagis (August 26), 

and Olivia Havens (August 27) 

 August 22‐26, Helen out sick. 

Fundraising: 

 Grants: 
o Worked on closing out CVCF grant from 2015. Sent letter to newspaper. 

o Worked on the Acquisition Fund grant, firming up potential purchases and getting 

commitment paperwork from artists. 

 Museum Store:  
o Recieved orders for store and put into system.  

o Still have issues with Square. Working on square reports. Has been a challenge to 

create reports. Can’t print an inventory. 

o Began Square procedure book.  

o Working on glitches with Square: Power booster did not work and we returned for 

refund. Square updated and changed the way we can edit products.  

 Totem Trot:  Revenue in July $4812.14 (Income $ 6,633.50; Expenses $1,821.36) 

o Our biggest event in August  
o Built and prepared sandwich boards 
o Gathered vegetables for the Spaghetti Feed 
o Cooked, hosted and served food 
o Marked the route with chalk.  
o Set up the registration tent with hot drinks and chairs.  
o Oriented volunteers 
o Took pictures for our records 
o Timed race finishers 



o Put everything away after the event.  
o Returned loaned items. 
o Sent out thank you letters. 

 

Exhibits: 

 New Children’s Room:  

o Started adhering paper to the floor to create the Chilkat River and surrounding land. 

 Lyn Fabio: August 5 Opening 

Collections and Archives 

 Items accessioned in August: 410 
o 47 assorted objects and archives, 263 AIA photographs 

 Reference Requests:  10 
o Some examples of other requests: Tlingit musical instruments, early State Trooper, 

Vogel buildings, Chilkat Trade Routes 

o Three resulted in copies purchased by researchers.  

o Responses indicate a high level of satisfaction in researchers.  

o One request may result in future collaboration between our museum and the Klondike 

Gold Rush National Historical Park in Skagway. They are working on a series of websites 

concerning military Company L, stationed in Skagway prior to the building of Fort 

Seward, and there will be some information on their activities relating to Haines.  

 Textile Move:  We completed the textile move in early August. All rolled textiles from the 
former archives room have been placed in storage K, 1‐6, and their Past Perfect records have 
been updated accordingly. Several textiles mislabeled or listed as missing were found and 
corrected, including a rare 49‐star flag donated by Joan Comerford. 

 AIA photos: 263 photographs from the Alaska Indian Arts collection were added to Past Perfect. 
Many have yet to be scanned by Natalie Pardee, but are otherwise in the system and ready for 
storage options. 

 Clarissa Rizal prints:  Found in store storage, she is willing to consign them to the museum and 

has agreed to donate one to the collection. She also wants one returned to her.  

 KHNS History Talks, 8:45‐9 a.m. every other Tuesday morning:  August 2 

 

 

 

 

   



SEPTEMBER 

Visitor count:  1002 
Volunteer hours:  125.5 
Adult Programs: 6 attended 
Children’s Programs: 71 attended 
Sales (Admissions and Store): Square reported net sales $5,101.37 in 581 transactions 
Museum Passes: Total for the 2016 season: 2157 passes sold  ($34,512.00) 

□ Sheldon Museum: sold 1079, received $8,239.34  

□ Eagle Foundation: sold 615, received $16,004.54 
□ Hammer Museum: sold 445, received $7807.94 

□ Visitor Center: sold 18  
Each museum paid $388.66 in advertising costs for the CVN. These costs were fronted by the Sheldon 
Museum and reimbursed later by the other two museums. 
 
Education, Public Programs, Events and Staff Training 

 First Friday: none in September (we were too tired) 

 Apple Activities: September 2 the 4th grade (21 kids, 3 adults) and the Library Kids (6 kids, 3 

adults).  We had to cancel apple activity groups after that because the tree had no more apples. 

 Haines 50 Scavenger Hunt: Patty Brown organized a scavenger hunt sheet for the 5th and 6th 

graders to complete. 

 AASLH Online Conference: September 15 and 16, hosted online conference from 6 a.m. to noon. 

 
Administration:   

 In the first half of September, we had severely reduced staff. Madeline was on vacation 
from September 1‐7. Staff primarily kept the doors open to the public and accomplished 
little other work. 

 Mid‐September we switched to winter hours.  

 Conferences: staff attended two conferences:  
o AASLH online conference was broadcast at the museum for interested locals and 

other museum professionals to attend with us.  
o Museums Alaska Conference, held the following week in Juneau. Staff attended 

workshops on storage and packaging of collections materials and repair of spruce 
root baskets, as well as programs on a variety of helpful topics.  

 Sept 6: Piano tuner tuned the piano in the upper gallery. 

 Warren announced he would no longer be providing IT services to the museum. 

 Worked with Jila and Auditors the week of September 26th, closing out FY16. 
 

Fundraising: 

 Grants Written: 
o Museums Alaska Collections Management Grant – staff training in collections 

inventories, money for three months of an intern, inventory project January through 
March 2017. 

o Chilkat Valley Community Foundation – to purchase vitrines to cover items currently 
unprotected in the Haines 50 exhibit. 

Exhibits: 

 New Children’s Room:  



o Continued work on floor as time permitted. 

Collections and Archives 

 Research Requests: 9 
o Research Related Sales: 2 

 Items Accessioned (Including Loans): 9 

 Items Considered for Accessioning: 48 

 Conferences Attended: 2 

 Collections Volunteers: 1 
o Total Days Volunteered in Collections: 1 

 Outdoor Sculptures/Objects Received and Placed: 8 

 Exhibits Prepared For In Collections: 2 

 Reference Requests:   

o Jones Point History, photographs for Dan Henry’s book, Chisel Building, Chilkat Center, 

HR Building, Haines Town Hall 

 Donations: 

o Lucy Harrel donated seven Judd Mullady sculptures. Process included several meetings 
with the artist, choosing the sculptures, and deciding on placement for them. They 
arrived in two batches. As of the end of September, they are all in place around the 
lawn. 

o Received Gate Valve #1 of the Haines‐Fairbanks pipeline and installed it on the 
museum’s hillside. 

 KHNS History Talks, 8:45‐9 a.m. every other Tuesday morning:  September 13 & 27 

   



OCTOBER 

Visitor count:  214 
Volunteer hours:  106 
Adult Programs: 72 
Children’s Programs: 99 
Research Requests:  1   
 
Education, Public Programs, Events and Staff Training 

 Doll Fair, October 22, 2016: 66 attendees 

o Washed table cloths and napkins from Doll Fair  

o Purchased supplies for Doll Fair and Children’s Room 

o Worked with Leigh Horner and Jila Stuart to coordinate Doll Fair crafts and volunteering  

o Set up and staffed 39th Annual Doll Fair, attended by 34 children and 28 adults  

o Pre‐washed all cups and saucers for the Doll Fair  

o Organized two crafts for Doll Fair 

o Junior Curators set up doll exhibit for the Doll Fair 

 Uplands Harbor Charrette Oct 12 – 38 attended  

 Began Junior Curator Program October 1. 4 teenagers are participating in it. Students had an 

overview of the history of museums and different types of museums. Then they learned about 

handling objects, researching in the database, and cataloging new accessions. 

 Hosted two Rasmuson Foundation events October 3 and 4. One was a meet and greet for the 

Alaska Community Foundation. One was a meeting about the Chilkat Valley Preschool. 49 

attended total. 

 
Marketing 

 Updated main page, employment, staff, six‐week spotlight, special events, and temporary 
exhibits pages on website  

 Arranged advertising for volunteers and for the Doll Fair  

 Designed poster highlighting being open on Sundays and for the First Friday November event 

 Put together the November Newsletter 

 Arranged advertising with Bell’s guides. 

 One tour operator informed us that their proposed tour, which includes the Haines Sheldon 
Museum, was accepted by the cruise ship companies. 

 
Administration:   

 Closed museum and cleaned carpets October 17:  

o Prepared offices and galleries for carpet cleaning (10/16) moving collections and 

other items off floors throughout building. 

o Put museum back together after carpet cleaning (10/19) 

 Donna Lambert’s last day, Oct. 3. 

 Hired Sabine Churchill as contract bookkeeper. 

Fundraising: 

 Grants Written: 



o Museums Alaska Art Acquisition Fund – request to purchase Donna Cattoti pastel 
and Gepetto’s Junkyard puppets. 

o Alaska Historical Commission Sesquicentennial Grant – funds for the October 27th, 
2017 exhibit “Across the Shaman’s River.” 

o National Historical Publications and Records Commission (NHPRC) Grant (National 
Archives) – completed additional questions in grant for $200,000 to fund 1.5 years 
of an archivist and an assistant in collections.  

 Grants Received: 
o Museums Alaska Collections Management Grant – staff training in collections 

inventories, money for three months of an intern, inventory project January through 
March 2017. 

o Alaska State Museum Grant‐in‐Aid – purchase of a large format, giclee quality 
printer. 

Exhibits: 

 New Children’s Room:  

o Applied 9 layers of polyurethane to children’s floor 

 Rasmuson Art Exhibit 

o Edited label text  

o Designed labels  

o Printed and mounted text panels  

o Chose artwork and designed layout 

o Negotiated loan agreements with two other museums in town 

o Installed Rasmuson Exhibit   

 Lyn Fabio Exhibit 

o De‐installation of Terra/Mare 

o Filled holes and painted gallery walls after deinstallation 

 Haines 50 

o Replaced bulbs and adjusted lighting in the Haines 50 

 White Fang: 

o Discussed loaning of items with Gene Kennedy, Mary Asper, Fuzzy Von Stauffenberg, 

Tod Sebens, Jim Shook, the Klondike, the Brewery, Thom Andriesen, Lee and Margo 

Clayton, and the Visitors Center 

o Ordered supplies for White Fang Exhibit 

o Designed initial poster for White Fang Exhibit 

o Conducted Oral History interview with Margo and Lee Clayton concerning their White 

Fang photo album 

Collections and Archives 

 Reference Requests: 1 
o Research Related Sales: 0 

 Items Accessioned (Including Loans): 22 

 Items Considered for Accessioning: 26 

 Collections Volunteers: 1 
o Total Days Volunteered in Collections: 3 

 Exhibits Prepared For In Collections: 1 



 Approximately 20‐30 collections items were affected by the carpet cleaning – they were moved 

off the carpet and then returned to their original location. 

KHNS History Talks, 8:45‐9 a.m. every other Tuesday morning:  10/11: Haines 50#36 (Fox Fur Trophy); 

10/25: Ghost of the Courageous Adventurer  



  
 

     Minutes 
Haines Borough Public Library Board 

August 17, 2016 
4:00 PM 

 
The mission of the Haines Borough Public Library is to be responsive to community needs by 
assembling, preserving, and providing access to materials, information, and technology.  The 
Library offers an environment conducive to providing programs, sharing information, and 

stimulating ideas.  HBPL is a community gathering place where all ages are welcome. 
 

Call to Order - 4:12pm 
 
Present - Dick Flegel, Vanessa Salmon, Mike Case, Anne Marie Palmieri, JoAnn 
Ross Cunningham, Lorrie Dudzik, Meghan Elliott, James Alborough 
 
Excused - Jenty Fowler 
   
Additions or Revisions to Agenda - Add Gun Ad to the agenda. 
 
Consent Agenda Items 
The following items are consent items for final action to be taken on all by a single vote.  
Any item may be removed for separate consideration if necessary. 
 

• Approval of Agenda 
• Approval of Minutes 07/20/2016 
• Director’s Report 

 
Dick/JoAnn M/S to approve agenda as amended.  Approved unanimously. 
 

Correspondence - James read a letter written by Brian Berry who has been visiting here 
since the 1990’s.  This letter was to support the library and its expansion. 
 
Items for Discussion 
 

• Review Board committees and appointments:  Budget, Building, Personnel, 
Technology, Policy - Everyone signed up to be on at least two committees.  
 

• FY16 Overview follow-up - postponed until next meeting 
• Personnel and policy committee meeting dates - joint committee meeting 8-29-16 

at 4:00pm 
 

• LEAP & committees - We agreed to sign up for the LEAP committees.  We will 
set up a steering committee meeting tentatively for 8-25 at 4:00pm. 

 
• Gun ad on the hainesak website which is sponsored by the Friends of the Library 

James pointed out that a classified ad on the site to sell an AK 47 was questioned 
by a library patron.  This is a decision of the Friends of the Library (FOL), James 
felt that we should be aware of the issue.  We agreed with the FOL that unless the 
item for sale is illegal, we should not have the right to censor what someone 
chooses to sell. 

 
 

9A



Policy Review 
 

�  Library cards, Use of the library, Theft, Services of the library - The policy 
committee will discuss two points brought up by Anne Marie. 

   
Other 

• Radio            
August 19- Vanessa,   August 26 - FOL,   September 2 - Staff, September 9 - Dick, 
Sept.16 - James 

 
                
Board Comments - none 
 
Director’s Comments - none  
 
Next Meeting -  September 21, 4:00pm (TBD) 
 
Adjournment  - 4:43pm  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Lorrie Dudzik 
Secretary 



HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION No. 16-11-691 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY AUTHORIZING AND 
DESIGNATING CERTAIN PERSONS TO SIGN AND ENDORSE CHECKS 
PERTAINING TO THE BOROUGH’S FIRST NATIONAL BANK ALASKA 
ACCOUNTS, AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN PERSONS AS SIGNATORIES FOR 
THE BOROUGH’S SECURITY CASH ACCOUNTS AND INVESTMENTS. 

 
WHEREAS, the Haines Borough Assembly approves a signature authority list for the Haines 
Borough bank accounts; and  
 
WHEREAS, First National Bank Alaska is hereby authorized to honor and pay checks or 
other orders for the payment of money drawn in the name of the Haines Borough when 
signed by any two of the authorized individuals; and 
 
WHEREAS, the following individuals are recommended as check signers for all borough 
First National Bank Alaska bank accounts:  

 Janice Hill, Mayor 
 Mike Case, Deputy Mayor 
 William Seward, Borough Manager 
 Julie Cozzi, Borough Clerk (Corporate Secretary) 
 Jila Stuart, Chief Fiscal Officer; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Haines Borough has also established and wishes to maintain security cash 
accounts and investments; and 
 
WHEREAS, a resolution of the Borough Assembly is required to authorize signatories on such 
accounts and investments; and 
 
WHEREAS, the following individuals are recommended as signatories for all borough security 
cash accounts and investments: 

 Jila Stuart, Chief Fiscal Officer 
 Julie Cozzi, Borough Clerk (Corporate Secretary) 
 William Seward, Borough Manager 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Haines Borough Assembly: 

Section 1:  The foregoing authorizations shall be continuing ones and shall not be 
exhausted by their exercise but shall remain in effect until revoked by 
a resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly, or if any individual 
named in this resolution ceases to be an official, contractor, or 
employee of the Haines Borough; 

Section 2:  The Borough Clerk is hereby authorized to certify to First National 
Bank Alaska a copy of this resolution and the names of this borough's 
designated officials and employees thereby authorized to act as check 
signers; 

 

 

Draft 

 

 11A1



Haines Borough 
Resolution No. 16-11-691 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Section 3:  The foregoing designated individuals are hereby authorized to sell, 
assign and endorse for transfer, certificates representing stocks, bonds 
or other securities now registered or hereafter registered in the name of 
the Haines Borough; and 

 
Section 4:  The Borough Clerk is hereby given the authority, by means of a 

certification form, to certify the names and titles of such officers when 
changes in office occur, and is also hereby authorized to certify this 
resolution has been duly adopted and will remain in full force and effect 
until the Transfer Agent receives a duly executed amendment to the 
original Certification Form. 

 
Adopted by a duly-constituted quorum of the Haines Borough Assembly on this ____ day of 
_________, 2016. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Janice Hill, Mayor 

 
Attest:  
 
 
_______________________________ 
Julie Cozzi, MMC, Borough Clerk  



Haines Borough
Assembly Agenda Bill

Agenda Bill No.:  
Assembly Meeting Date:  

Business Item Description: Attachments:
Subject:

Originator:

Originating Department:

Date Submitted:

Full Title/Motion:

Administrative Recommendation:

Fiscal Impact:

Expenditure Required Amount Budgeted Appropriation Required Projected Impact to Future 
Operating Budgets

$ $ $

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Review:
Comp Plan Goals/Objectives:

Consistent: Yes     No

Summary Statement:

Referral:
Referred to: Referral Date:
Recommendation: Meeting Date:

Assembly Action:
Meeting Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s):

Postponed to Date:

 
 

16-690
11/8/16

Portage Cove Harbor Expansion project ($13,202,938)

Director of Public Facilities

Public Facilities

11/3/16

1. Resolution 16-11-692
2. Bid Solicitation
3. Bid Results
4. PHAC Action Requests

Motion: Adopt Resolution 16-11-692.

The Director of Public Facilities recommends adoption of this resolution.

13,202,938 See summary Pending economic assessment

Objective 4B, page 144

The Portage Cove Harbor Expansion project base bid work consists of harbor basin dredging, steel pile supported
wave barrier, moorage pile replacement and upland parking area. Additive Alternate A, B and C include additional
dredging within the existing inner harbor; sacrificial pile anodes; and wave barrier extension and additional basin
dredging, respectively. The Engineer’s Estimate for all work was approximately $15 million. The Borough obtained six
responsive, sealed bids: 1) Pacific Pile & Marine for $13,202,938; 2) Orion Marine for $14,291,900; 3) Cruz
Construction for $14,897,880; 4) Turnagain Marine for $15,929,560; 5) Kiewit Pacific for $17,897,418; and 6) Manson
Construction for $17,941,046. The Director of Public Facilities has reviewed the bids and recommends award to PPM,
with all three additive alternates. There is approximately $16.5 million remaining from FY13 Designated Legislative
Grants for Haines Boat Harbor and Breakwater Improvements and Boat Harbor Upgrades, sufficient to cover this
contract and an estimated $1.5 million in additional contingency and engineering/inspection costs.

0

11/8/16

Contract with Pacific Pile & Marine for the



HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA
RESOLUTION No. 16-11-692

A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly authorizing the 
Borough Manager to execute a contract with Pacific Pile & Marine for
the Portage Cove Harbor Expansion project for an amount not to 
exceed $13,202,938. 

WHEREAS, the Portage Cove Harbor Expansion project base bid work consists of harbor 
basin dredging, steel pile supported wave barrier, moorage pile replacement and upland 
parking area; and

WHEREAS, Additive Alternate A, B and C include additional dredging within the existing 
inner harbor; sacrificial pile anodes; and wave barrier extension and additional basin 
dredging, respectively; and

WHEREAS, the Engineer’s Estimate for all work was approximately $15 million; and

WHEREAS, the Borough recently issued a request for sealed bids from qualified, licensed 
contractors for the project; and

WHEREAS, the Borough obtained six responsive, sealed bids: 1) Pacific Pile & Marine for 
$13,202,938; 2) Orion Marine for $14,291,900; 3) Cruz Construction for $14,897,880; 4) 
Turnagain Marine for $15,929,560; 5) Kiewit Pacific for $17,897,418; and 6) Manson 
Construction for $17,941,046; and

WHEREAS, the Director of Public Facilities has reviewed the bids and recommends award to 
Pacific Pile & Marine, with all three additive alternates; and

WHEREAS, there is approximately $16.5 million remaining from FY13 Designated 
Legislative Grants for Haines Boat Harbor and Breakwater Improvements and Boat Harbor 
Upgrades, sufficient to cover this contract and an estimated $1.5 million in additional 
contingency and engineering/inspection costs, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Haines Borough Assembly authorizes the 
Borough Manager to execute a contract with Pacific Pile & Marine for the Portage Cove 
Harbor Expansion project for an amount not to exceed $13,202,938. 

Adopted by a duly-constituted quorum of the Haines Borough Assembly on this ___ day of 
__________, 2016. 

      ___________________________
        Janice Hill, Mayor 

Attest:  

_________________________________
Julie Cozzi, MMC, Borough Clerk

Draft

 



PORTAGE COVE
HARBOR EXPANSION

NOTICE INVITING BIDS

HAINES BOROUGH
PORTAGE COVE HARBOR EXPANSION

INVITATION TO BID

Notice is hereby given that the Haines Borough, Alaska will receive sealed bids for the construction of 
Portage Cove Harbor Expansion.  The project generally consists of the following Work:

The Base Bid WORK generally consists of harbor basin dredging, steel pile supported wave 
barrier, moorage pile replacement and upland parking area.   

Additive Alternate A WORK generally consists of additional dredging within the existing inner 
harbor.  

Additive Alternate B WORK generally consists of sacrificial pile anodes.

Additive Alternate C WORK generally consists of wave barrier extension and additional basin 
dredging.   

The Engineer’s Estimate for all WORK is approximately $15 million. All WORK shall be substantially 
completed by May 31, 2018. 

Sealed bids will be received by the Haines Borough, P.O. Box 1209, Haines, Alaska 99827, located at the 
Office of the Clerk, 103 Third Avenue S., Haines, Alaska 99827 until 2:00 PM. prevailing time on 
Wednesday, September 21, 2016 at which time the bids will be publicly opened and read aloud in the 
Borough Administration Office Conference Room.  Clearly mark on the outside of the envelope
“Request for Bids, Portage Cove Harbor Expansion”. Bid Proposals shall remain open for sixty days 
following date of bid opening.  

A printed set of Contract Documents, including one set of reduced scale drawings, may be obtained at the 
Haines Borough office, P.O. Box 1209, Haines, AK 99827 (Ph. 907-766-2231). A non-refundable fee of 
$100.00 made payable to the Haines Borough is required for each set of contract documents.  Additional 
charges will be required for special handling or delivery of the documents by means other than first class 
mail.  

The Contract Documents will also be available in electronic format as a downloadable pdf file on the 
following web site:  www.hainesalaska.gov/  

Each bid shall be accompanied by a bid bond, cashier’s check or certified check made payable to the Haines 
Borough in the amount of five percent of the total bid price. 

Prospective bidders are encouraged to attend a Pre-Bid Conference that will be held in Haines on
Wednesday, September 7, 2016 beginning at 1:00 PM at the Borough Assembly Chambers.  Attendance by 
teleconference will be available by calling 1-800-315-6338, Access Code:  28851#.  Questions regarding this 
project shall be directed to Brad Ryan, Director of Public Facilities (907-314-0648). 

The Haines Borough reserves the right to reject any or all bids, to waive any informality in a bid, and to make 
award to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder as it may best serve the interest of the Borough.



Haines Borough
Bid Opening Record

Location: Borough Admin. Building

Project: Portage Cove Harbor Expansion

Date/Time:  2pm, 10/25/16

Manson Construction X X X X X X 17,658,170 882,810 403,980 544,500 

Modifications (1,694,840) 135,040 66,920 (55,534)

Total 15,963,330 1,017,850 470,900 488,966 17,941,046 

Pacific Pile & Marine X X X X X X 12,053,299 362,710 401,380 385,549 

Modifications
Total 12,053,299 362,710 401,380 385,549 13,202,938 

Turnagain Marine X X X X X X 16,370,150 424,800 398,100 418,810 

Modifications (1,811,750) 58,700 14,800 55,950 

Total 14,558,400 483,500 412,900 474,760 15,929,560 

Cruz Construction X X X X X X 13,569,270 395,660 417,000 515,950 

Modifications
Total 13,569,270 395,660 417,000 515,950 14,897,880 

Kiewit Pacific X X X X X X 17,639,097 1,084,080 427,200 548,915 

Modifications (1,652,255) 10,000 (55,480) (104,139)

Total 15,986,842 1,094,080 371,720 444,776 17,897,418 

Orion Marine X X X X X X 18,021,750 332,650 435,000 454,600 

Modifications (4,885,450) (19,250) (15,000) (32,400)

Total 13,136,300 313,400 420,000 422,200 14,291,900 

Present:
Bill Seward, Borough Manager
Brad Ryan, Director of Public Facilities
Shawn Bell, Harbormaster
Krista Kielsmeier, Executive Assistant
Alekka Fullerton, Deputy Clerk
Jan Hill, Mayor
Margaret Friedenauer, Haines Borough Assembly
Heather Lende, Haines Borough Assembly-elect
Tom Morphet, Haines Borough Assembly-elect
Melanie Reed, Pacific Pile & Marine
Mack Pennington, Cruz Construction
Don Turner Jr., Port and Harbor Advisory Committee

Additive 
Alternate A 

($)

Additive 
Alternate B 

($)

Additive 
Alternate C 

($)

Proof of AK 
Business 
Licensing

Base Bid: 
Portage Cove 

Harbor 
Expansion 

($)

Non-
Collusion 
Affidavit

Total ($)Addenda Noted (3)Bidder Bid Rcvd by 
Deadline

Bid on Req. 
Form, 

Complete, & 
Signed

Bid Bond or 
Certf. Check of 
at least 5% of 

bid



Page 1 of 3

BASE BID 
Item Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount

1505.1 Mobilization LS All Reqd $1,298,635 $1,298,635 $1,256,000 $1,256,000 $1,645,000 $1,645,000
1570.1 Erosion and Sediment Control LS All Reqd $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000
1570.2 Silt Containment Boom LS All Reqd $30,000 $30,000 $65,000 $65,000 $50,000 $50,000
2060.1 Demolition, Salvage and Disposal LS All Reqd $25,000 $25,000 $76,000 $76,000 $115,000 $115,000
2060.2 Seaplane Float Removal and Reinstallation LS All Reqd $5,000 $5,000 $4,000 $4,000 $15,000 $15,000
2060.3 Remove, Salvage and Reinstall Transient Float Light Fixtures LS All Reqd $15,000 $15,000 $3,000 $3,000 $5,000 $5,000
2201.1 Clearing and Grubbing LS All Reqd $10,000 $10,000 $74,000 $74,000 $40,000 $40,000
2202.1 Class A Shot Rock Borrow CY 8,690 $35 $304,150 $35 $304,150 $30 $260,700
2202.2 Class B Shot Rock Borrow CY 8,390 $28 $234,920 $32 $268,480 $30 $251,700
2204.1 Base Course, Grading C-1 CY 440 $50 $22,000 $83 $36,520 $80 $35,200
2205.1 Class II Armor Rock CY 3,210 $70 $224,700 $92 $295,320 $95 $304,950
2205.2 Class III Armor Rock CY 2,210 $70 $154,700 $83 $183,430 $95 $209,950
2205.3 Class IV Armor Rock CY 1,540 $75 $115,500 $93 $143,220 $95 $146,300
2207.1 Remove and Restore Rock on Rubble Mound Breakwater LS All Reqd $200,000 $200,000 $75,000 $75,000 $100,000 $100,000
2207.2 Breakwater Armor Rock, Type I CY 700 $140 $98,000 $220 $154,000 $300 $210,000
2207.3 Breakwater Underlayer Rock, Type II CY 350 $140 $49,000 $125 $43,750 $200 $70,000
2207.4 Remove Existing Navigation Aid Structure LS All Reqd $5,000 $5,000 $7,000 $7,000 $5,000 $5,000
2401.1 Furnish and Install 16-Inch Dia. HDPE Wastewater Outfall Pipe Sta. 1+50 to 7+75 LF 625 $135 $84,375 $185 $115,625 $200 $125,000
2401.2 Furnish and Install 16-Inch Dia. HDPE Wastewater Outfall Pipe Sta. 7+75 to Diffuser LF 1,800 $370 $666,000 $325 $585,000 $350 $630,000
2401.3 Furnish and Install Wastewater Outfall Diffuser LS All Reqd $20,000 $20,000 $40,000 $40,000 $25,000 $25,000
2401.4 Connect to Existing 16-Inch Dia. HDPE Outfall Pipe LS All Reqd $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
2401.5 Furnish and Install Wastewater Outfall Concrete Anchor, Type I EA 170 $200 $34,000 $425 $72,250 $850 $144,500
2401.6 Furnish and Install Wastewater Outfall Concrete Anchor, Type II EA 20 $225 $4,500 $815 $16,300 $850 $17,000
2401.7 Wastewater Outfall Dive Surveys and Videos LS All Reqd $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 $50,000 $50,000
2501.1 12-Inch CPP Storm Drain Pipe LF 170 $60 $10,200 $120 $20,400 $150 $25,500
2501.2 24-Inch CPP Storm Drain Pipe LF 240 $100 $24,000 $140 $33,600 $150 $36,000
2501.3 36-Inch CPP Storm Drain Pipe LF 450 $120 $54,000 $180 $81,000 $200 $90,000
2501.4 Clean Existing Storm Drain Pipe to Upstream Manhole LS All Reqd $5,000 $5,000 $15,000 $15,000 $10,000 $10,000
2501.5 Connect to Existing Storm Drain Pipe EA 4 $1,000 $4,000 $6,000 $24,000 $5,000 $20,000
2502.1 Storm Drain Manhole, Type I EA 3 $10,000 $30,000 $15,000 $45,000 $15,000 $45,000
2502.2 Storm Drain Manhole, Type II EA 1 $5,000 $5,000 $12,000 $12,000 $10,000 $10,000
2502.3 Storm Drain Oil-Water Separator EA 1 $35,000 $35,000 $40,000 $40,000 $45,000 $45,000
2502.4 Storm Drain Outfall Structure LS All Reqd $40,000 $40,000 $55,000 $55,000 $50,000 $50,000
2702.1 Construction Surveying LS All Reqd $200,000 $200,000 $325,000 $325,000 $250,000 $250,000
2702.2 Reset Survey Monument EA 1 $5,000 $5,000 $7,500 $7,500 $5,000 $5,000
2714.1 Geotextile Fabric SY 13,240 $5 $66,200 $4.50 $59,580 $5 $66,200
2881.1 Dredging and Disposal CY 83,500 $28 $2,338,000 $16 $1,336,000 $12 $1,002,000
2881.2 Marine Mammal Work Suspension - Dredging Activity HR 20 $2,500 $50,000 $1,000 $20,000 $750 $15,000
2896.1 Furnish and Install Mooring Pile, 16 Inch Dia. X 0.500 Inch Thick EA 8 $10,000 $80,000 $7,000 $56,000 $9,500 $76,000
2896.2 Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Pile w/Sheetpile Wings, 24 Inch Dia. X 0.500 Inch Thick EA 113 $30,000 $3,390,000 $25,000 $2,825,000 $27,000 $3,051,000
2896.3 Furnish Bearing Pile, 30 Inch Dia. X 0.750 Inch Thick  LF 6,840 $260 $1,778,400 $182 $1,244,880 $170 $1,162,800
2896.4 Install Bearing Pile, 30 Inch Dia. X 0.750 Inch Thick EA 38 $22,500 $855,000 $17,500 $665,000 $22,000 $836,000
2896.5 Install Transient Float Pile, 12.75 Inch Dia. X 0.500 Inch Thick EA 9 $4,000 $36,000 $2,400 $21,600 $3,500 $31,500
2896.6 Contingent Work - Deep Obstruction Removal  CS As Reqd $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000
2896.7 SPIN FIN™ Pile Tip EA 36 $5,000 $180,000 $4,200 $151,200 $4,000 $144,000
2896.8 PDA Testing Assistance HR 20 $3,000 $60,000 $665 $13,300 $1,000 $20,000
2896.9 Field Splice Owner Furnished Transient Float Pile, 12.75 Inch Dia. EA 9 $1,500 $13,500 $785 $7,065 $1,000 $9,000
2896.10 Furnish and Install Open Cutting Shoe, 12.75 Inch Dia. Pile EA 1 $1,500 $1,500 $385 $385 $1,000 $1,000
2896.11 Field Splice, 24 Inch or 30 Inch Dia. Pile EA 6 $3,500 $21,000 $2,700 $16,200 $5,500 $33,000
2896.12 Marine Mammal Work Suspension - Pile Activity HR 20 $3,000 $60,000 $750 $15,000 $1,000 $20,000
5120.1 Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Waler LF 604 $550 $332,200 $486 $293,544 $1,000 $604,000
5120.2 Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Bearing Cap and Connection EA 19 $22,500 $427,500 $15,000 $285,000 $22,000 $418,000
5120.3 Wave Barrier Amenities - Fenders, Ladders, Navigation Aid Mount & Owner-Furnished Tower LS All Reqd $38,000 $38,000 $22,000 $22,000 $80,000 $80,000

TOTAL BASE BID PRICE $14,284,980 $12,053,299 $13,136,300

ADDITIVE ALTERNATE A -DREDGING EXISTING INNER HARBOR BASIN
Item Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount

1505.1-A Mobilization LS All Reqd $26,755 $26,755 $35,000 $35,000 $75,000 $75,000
2060.1-A Demolition, Salvage and Disposal LS All Reqd $15,000 $15,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
2205.1-A Class II Armor Rock CY 370 $70 $25,900 $92 $34,040 $100 $37,000
2702.1-A Construction Surveying LS All Reqd $25,000 $25,000 $33,500 $33,500 $30,000 $30,000
2881.1-A Dredging and Disposal CY 16,140 $30 $484,200 $15.50 $250,170 $10 $161,400

TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE A PRICE $576,855 $362,710 $313,400

ADDITIVE ALTERNATE B -PILE ANODES
Item Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount

1505.1-B Mobilization LS All Reqd $36,200 $36,200 $20,000 $20,000 $30,000 $30,000
2996.1-B Supply Anode EA 380 $475 $180,500 $475 $180,500 $450 $171,000
2996.2-B Install Anode EA 380 $425 $161,500 $516 $196,080 $550 $209,000
2996.3-B Field Photos, Continuity, Potential Readings and Report LS All Reqd $20,000 $20,000 $4,800 $4,800 $10,000 $10,000

TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE B PRICE $398,200 $401,380 $420,000

ADDITIVE ALTERNATE C - ADDITIONAL WAVE BARRIER, PILE ANODES & DREDGING
Item Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount

1505.1-C Mobilization LS All Reqd $30,531 $30,531 $7,500 $7,500 $10,000 $10,000
2205.1-C Class II Armor Rock CY 160 $70 $11,200 $125 $20,000 $100 $16,000
2702.1-C Construction Surveying LS All Reqd $10,000 $10,000 $5,000 $5,000 $10,000 $10,000
2881.1-C Dredging and Disposal CY 7,020 $28 $196,560 $10 $70,200 $10 $70,200
2896.2-C Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Pile w/Sheetpile Wings, 24 Inch Dia. X 0.500 Inch Thick EA 6 $30,000 $180,000 $21,000 $126,000 $22,000 $132,000
2896.3-C Furnish Bearing Pile, 30 Inch Dia. X 0.750 Inch Thick  LF 360 $260 $93,600 $182 $65,520 $150 $54,000
2896.4-C Install Bearing Pile, 30 Inch Dia. X 0.750 Inch Thick EA 2 $22,500 $45,000 $14,000 $28,000 $20,000 $40,000
2896.7-C SPIN FIN™ Pile Tip EA 2 $5,000 $10,000 $4,350 $8,700 $4,000 $8,000
2996.1-C Supply Anode EA 24 $475 $11,400 $475 $11,400 $450 $10,800
2996.2-C Install Anode EA 24 $425 $10,200 $516 $12,384 $550 $13,200
2996.3-C Field Photos, Continuity, Potential Readings and Report LS All Reqd $2,000 $2,000 $500 $500 $5,000 $5,000
5120.1-C Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Waler LF 33 $550 $18,150 $465 $15,345 $1,000 $33,000
5120.2-C Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Bearing Cap and Connection EA 1 $22,500 $22,500 $15,000 $15,000 $20,000 $20,000

TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE C PRICE $641,141 $385,549 $422,200

Orion Marine

HAINES BOROUGH
PORTAGE COVE HARBOR EXPANSION

BID SUMMARY
Bid Opening: October 25, 2016

Pacific Pile & Marine, LPEngineer's Estimate 



Page 2 of 3

BASE BID 
Item Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount

1505.1 Mobilization LS All Reqd $1,298,635 $1,298,635 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,959,600 $1,959,600
1570.1 Erosion and Sediment Control LS All Reqd $15,000 $15,000 $47,000 $47,000 $20,900 $20,900
1570.2 Silt Containment Boom LS All Reqd $30,000 $30,000 $51,500 $51,500 $39,100 $39,100
2060.1 Demolition, Salvage and Disposal LS All Reqd $25,000 $25,000 $135,000 $135,000 $112,300 $112,300
2060.2 Seaplane Float Removal and Reinstallation LS All Reqd $5,000 $5,000 $3,250 $3,250 $10,200 $10,200
2060.3 Remove, Salvage and Reinstall Transient Float Light Fixtures LS All Reqd $15,000 $15,000 $7,000 $7,000 $49,700 $49,700
2201.1 Clearing and Grubbing LS All Reqd $10,000 $10,000 $45,000 $45,000 $52,700 $52,700
2202.1 Class A Shot Rock Borrow CY 8,690 $35 $304,150 $27 $234,630 $30 $260,700
2202.2 Class B Shot Rock Borrow CY 8,390 $28 $234,920 $28 $234,920 $30 $251,700
2204.1 Base Course, Grading C-1 CY 440 $50 $22,000 $72 $31,680 $80 $35,200
2205.1 Class II Armor Rock CY 3,210 $70 $224,700 $75 $240,750 $90 $288,900
2205.2 Class III Armor Rock CY 2,210 $70 $154,700 $76 $167,960 $80 $176,800
2205.3 Class IV Armor Rock CY 1,540 $75 $115,500 $85 $130,900 $90 $138,600
2207.1 Remove and Restore Rock on Rubble Mound Breakwater LS All Reqd $200,000 $200,000 $190,000 $190,000 $45,300 $45,300
2207.2 Breakwater Armor Rock, Type I CY 700 $140 $98,000 $300 $210,000 $600 $420,000
2207.3 Breakwater Underlayer Rock, Type II CY 350 $140 $49,000 $200 $70,000 $600 $210,000
2207.4 Remove Existing Navigation Aid Structure LS All Reqd $5,000 $5,000 $4,000 $4,000 $1,300 $1,300
2401.1 Furnish and Install 16-Inch Dia. HDPE Wastewater Outfall Pipe Sta. 1+50 to 7+75 LF 625 $135 $84,375 $162 $101,250 $180 $112,500
2401.2 Furnish and Install 16-Inch Dia. HDPE Wastewater Outfall Pipe Sta. 7+75 to Diffuser LF 1,800 $370 $666,000 $500 $900,000 $300 $540,000
2401.3 Furnish and Install Wastewater Outfall Diffuser LS All Reqd $20,000 $20,000 $53,500 $53,500 $5,500 $5,500
2401.4 Connect to Existing 16-Inch Dia. HDPE Outfall Pipe LS All Reqd $10,000 $10,000 $19,000 $19,000 $7,900 $7,900
2401.5 Furnish and Install Wastewater Outfall Concrete Anchor, Type I EA 170 $200 $34,000 $500 $85,000 $380 $64,600
2401.6 Furnish and Install Wastewater Outfall Concrete Anchor, Type II EA 20 $225 $4,500 $925 $18,500 $460 $9,200
2401.7 Wastewater Outfall Dive Surveys and Videos LS All Reqd $20,000 $20,000 $97,500 $97,500 $31,300 $31,300
2501.1 12-Inch CPP Storm Drain Pipe LF 170 $60 $10,200 $105 $17,850 $120 $20,400
2501.2 24-Inch CPP Storm Drain Pipe LF 240 $100 $24,000 $125 $30,000 $180 $43,200
2501.3 36-Inch CPP Storm Drain Pipe LF 450 $120 $54,000 $160 $72,000 $220 $99,000
2501.4 Clean Existing Storm Drain Pipe to Upstream Manhole LS All Reqd $5,000 $5,000 $12,500 $12,500 $18,400 $18,400
2501.5 Connect to Existing Storm Drain Pipe EA 4 $1,000 $4,000 $4,000 $16,000 $4,300 $17,200
2502.1 Storm Drain Manhole, Type I EA 3 $10,000 $30,000 $12,000 $36,000 $16,800 $50,400
2502.2 Storm Drain Manhole, Type II EA 1 $5,000 $5,000 $10,000 $10,000 $13,100 $13,100
2502.3 Storm Drain Oil-Water Separator EA 1 $35,000 $35,000 $50,000 $50,000 $64,800 $64,800
2502.4 Storm Drain Outfall Structure LS All Reqd $40,000 $40,000 $75,000 $75,000 $76,500 $76,500
2702.1 Construction Surveying LS All Reqd $200,000 $200,000 $165,000 $165,000 $752,800 $752,800
2702.2 Reset Survey Monument EA 1 $5,000 $5,000 $2,600 $2,600 $6,400 $6,400
2714.1 Geotextile Fabric SY 13,240 $5 $66,200 $3.50 $46,340 $5 $66,200
2881.1 Dredging and Disposal CY 83,500 $28 $2,338,000 $26 $2,171,000 $23 $1,920,500
2881.2 Marine Mammal Work Suspension - Dredging Activity HR 20 $2,500 $50,000 $950 $19,000 $2,300 $46,000
2896.1 Furnish and Install Mooring Pile, 16 Inch Dia. X 0.500 Inch Thick EA 8 $10,000 $80,000 $13,500 $108,000 $8,100 $64,800
2896.2 Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Pile w/Sheetpile Wings, 24 Inch Dia. X 0.500 Inch Thick EA 113 $30,000 $3,390,000 $26,500 $2,994,500 $23,800 $2,689,400
2896.3 Furnish Bearing Pile, 30 Inch Dia. X 0.750 Inch Thick  LF 6,840 $260 $1,778,400 $150 $1,026,000 $170 $1,162,800
2896.4 Install Bearing Pile, 30 Inch Dia. X 0.750 Inch Thick EA 38 $22,500 $855,000 $28,000 $1,064,000 $24,500 $931,000
2896.5 Install Transient Float Pile, 12.75 Inch Dia. X 0.500 Inch Thick EA 9 $4,000 $36,000 $5,700 $51,300 $3,400 $30,600
2896.6 Contingent Work - Deep Obstruction Removal  CS As Reqd $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000
2896.7 SPIN FIN™ Pile Tip EA 36 $5,000 $180,000 $3,500 $126,000 $5,400 $194,400
2896.8 PDA Testing Assistance HR 20 $3,000 $60,000 $500 $10,000 $2,500 $50,000
2896.9 Field Splice Owner Furnished Transient Float Pile, 12.75 Inch Dia. EA 9 $1,500 $13,500 $500 $4,500 $1,300 $11,700
2896.10 Furnish and Install Open Cutting Shoe, 12.75 Inch Dia. Pile EA 1 $1,500 $1,500 $1,000 $1,000 $1,400 $1,400
2896.11 Field Splice, 24 Inch or 30 Inch Dia. Pile EA 6 $3,500 $21,000 $5,500 $33,000 $6,400 $38,400
2896.12 Marine Mammal Work Suspension - Pile Activity HR 20 $3,000 $60,000 $1,010 $20,200 $2,500 $50,000
5120.1 Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Waler LF 604 $550 $332,200 $535 $323,140 $700 $422,800
5120.2 Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Bearing Cap and Connection EA 19 $22,500 $427,500 $24,000 $456,000 $18,300 $347,700
5120.3 Wave Barrier Amenities - Fenders, Ladders, Navigation Aid Mount & Owner-Furnished Tower LS All Reqd $38,000 $38,000 $50,000 $50,000 $24,500 $24,500

TOTAL BASE BID PRICE $14,284,980 $13,569,270 $14,558,400

ADDITIVE ALTERNATE A -DREDGING EXISTING INNER HARBOR BASIN
Item Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount

1505.1-A Mobilization LS All Reqd $26,755 $26,755 $3,000 $3,000 $71,800 $71,800
2060.1-A Demolition, Salvage and Disposal LS All Reqd $15,000 $15,000 $17,000 $17,000 $38,600 $38,600
2205.1-A Class II Armor Rock CY 370 $70 $25,900 $78 $28,860 $90 $33,300
2702.1-A Construction Surveying LS All Reqd $25,000 $25,000 $24,000 $24,000 $17,000 $17,000
2881.1-A Dredging and Disposal CY 16,140 $30 $484,200 $20 $322,800 $20 $322,800

TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE A PRICE $576,855 $395,660 $483,500

ADDITIVE ALTERNATE B -PILE ANODES
Item Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount

1505.1-B Mobilization LS All Reqd $36,200 $36,200 $11,500 $11,500 $34,400 $34,400
2996.1-B Supply Anode EA 380 $475 $180,500 $600 $228,000 $500 $190,000
2996.2-B Install Anode EA 380 $425 $161,500 $450 $171,000 $480 $182,400
2996.3-B Field Photos, Continuity, Potential Readings and Report LS All Reqd $20,000 $20,000 $6,500 $6,500 $6,100 $6,100

TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE B PRICE $398,200 $417,000 $412,900

ADDITIVE ALTERNATE C - ADDITIONAL WAVE BARRIER, PILE ANODES & DREDGING
Item Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount

1505.1-C Mobilization LS All Reqd $30,531 $30,531 $4,000 $4,000 $1,200 $1,200
2205.1-C Class II Armor Rock CY 160 $70 $11,200 $90 $14,400 $100 $16,000
2702.1-C Construction Surveying LS All Reqd $10,000 $10,000 $3,000 $3,000 $5,700 $5,700
2881.1-C Dredging and Disposal CY 7,020 $28 $196,560 $20 $140,400 $20 $140,400
2896.2-C Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Pile w/Sheetpile Wings, 24 Inch Dia. X 0.500 Inch Thick EA 6 $30,000 $180,000 $27,000 $162,000 $22,800 $136,800
2896.3-C Furnish Bearing Pile, 30 Inch Dia. X 0.750 Inch Thick  LF 360 $260 $93,600 $150 $54,000 $170 $61,200
2896.4-C Install Bearing Pile, 30 Inch Dia. X 0.750 Inch Thick EA 2 $22,500 $45,000 $28,500 $57,000 $21,300 $42,600
2896.7-C SPIN FIN™ Pile Tip EA 2 $5,000 $10,000 $3,800 $7,600 $5,400 $10,800
2996.1-C Supply Anode EA 24 $475 $11,400 $600 $14,400 $500 $12,000
2996.2-C Install Anode EA 24 $425 $10,200 $600 $14,400 $480 $11,520
2996.3-C Field Photos, Continuity, Potential Readings and Report LS All Reqd $2,000 $2,000 $1,600 $1,600 $600 $600
5120.1-C Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Waler LF 33 $550 $18,150 $550 $18,150 $480 $15,840
5120.2-C Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Bearing Cap and Connection EA 1 $22,500 $22,500 $25,000 $25,000 $20,100 $20,100

TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE C PRICE $641,141 $515,950 $474,760

HAINES BOROUGH
PORTAGE COVE HARBOR EXPANSION

BID SUMMARY
Bid Opening: October 25, 2016

Engineer's Estimate Cruz Construction, Inc. Turnagain Marine Const.



Page 3 of 3

BASE BID 
Item Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount

1505.1 Mobilization LS All Reqd $1,298,635 $1,298,635 $2,165,840 $2,165,840 $2,000,000 $2,000,000
1570.1 Erosion and Sediment Control LS All Reqd $15,000 $15,000 $100,000 $100,000 $25,000 $25,000
1570.2 Silt Containment Boom LS All Reqd $30,000 $30,000 $100,000 $100,000 $50,000 $50,000
2060.1 Demolition, Salvage and Disposal LS All Reqd $25,000 $25,000 $150,000 $150,000 $250,000 $250,000
2060.2 Seaplane Float Removal and Reinstallation LS All Reqd $5,000 $5,000 $10,000 $10,000 $20,000 $20,000
2060.3 Remove, Salvage and Reinstall Transient Float Light Fixtures LS All Reqd $15,000 $15,000 $6,300 $6,300 $20,000 $20,000
2201.1 Clearing and Grubbing LS All Reqd $10,000 $10,000 $100,000 $100,000 $50,000 $50,000
2202.1 Class A Shot Rock Borrow CY 8,690 $35 $304,150 $75 $651,750 $26 $225,940
2202.2 Class B Shot Rock Borrow CY 8,390 $28 $234,920 $45 $377,550 $26 $218,140
2204.1 Base Course, Grading C-1 CY 440 $50 $22,000 $100 $44,000 $65 $28,600
2205.1 Class II Armor Rock CY 3,210 $70 $224,700 $200 $642,000 $100 $321,000
2205.2 Class III Armor Rock CY 2,210 $70 $154,700 $80 $176,800 $72 $159,120
2205.3 Class IV Armor Rock CY 1,540 $75 $115,500 $90 $138,600 $85 $130,900
2207.1 Remove and Restore Rock on Rubble Mound Breakwater LS All Reqd $200,000 $200,000 $50,000 $50,000 $65,000 $65,000
2207.2 Breakwater Armor Rock, Type I CY 700 $140 $98,000 $400 $280,000 $210 $147,000
2207.3 Breakwater Underlayer Rock, Type II CY 350 $140 $49,000 $200 $70,000 $155 $54,250
2207.4 Remove Existing Navigation Aid Structure LS All Reqd $5,000 $5,000 $10,000 $10,000 $7,500 $7,500
2401.1 Furnish and Install 16-Inch Dia. HDPE Wastewater Outfall Pipe Sta. 1+50 to 7+75 LF 625 $135 $84,375 $250 $156,250 $170 $106,250
2401.2 Furnish and Install 16-Inch Dia. HDPE Wastewater Outfall Pipe Sta. 7+75 to Diffuser LF 1,800 $370 $666,000 $700 $1,260,000 $400 $720,000
2401.3 Furnish and Install Wastewater Outfall Diffuser LS All Reqd $20,000 $20,000 $50,000 $50,000 $60,000 $60,000
2401.4 Connect to Existing 16-Inch Dia. HDPE Outfall Pipe LS All Reqd $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $20,000 $20,000
2401.5 Furnish and Install Wastewater Outfall Concrete Anchor, Type I EA 170 $200 $34,000 $2,000 $340,000 $590 $100,300
2401.6 Furnish and Install Wastewater Outfall Concrete Anchor, Type II EA 20 $225 $4,500 $1,800 $36,000 $1,250 $25,000
2401.7 Wastewater Outfall Dive Surveys and Videos LS All Reqd $20,000 $20,000 $150,000 $150,000 $45,000 $45,000
2501.1 12-Inch CPP Storm Drain Pipe LF 170 $60 $10,200 $150 $25,500 $105 $17,850
2501.2 24-Inch CPP Storm Drain Pipe LF 240 $100 $24,000 $220 $52,800 $155 $37,200
2501.3 36-Inch CPP Storm Drain Pipe LF 450 $120 $54,000 $300 $135,000 $190 $85,500
2501.4 Clean Existing Storm Drain Pipe to Upstream Manhole LS All Reqd $5,000 $5,000 $20,000 $20,000 $11,200 $11,200
2501.5 Connect to Existing Storm Drain Pipe EA 4 $1,000 $4,000 $2,500 $10,000 $3,000 $12,000
2502.1 Storm Drain Manhole, Type I EA 3 $10,000 $30,000 $9,000 $27,000 $14,500 $43,500
2502.2 Storm Drain Manhole, Type II EA 1 $5,000 $5,000 $7,000 $7,000 $11,200 $11,200
2502.3 Storm Drain Oil-Water Separator EA 1 $35,000 $35,000 $65,000 $65,000 $60,000 $60,000
2502.4 Storm Drain Outfall Structure LS All Reqd $40,000 $40,000 $60,000 $60,000 $70,000 $70,000
2702.1 Construction Surveying LS All Reqd $200,000 $200,000 $250,000 $250,000 $220,000 $220,000
2702.2 Reset Survey Monument EA 1 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $6,000 $6,000
2714.1 Geotextile Fabric SY 13,240 $5 $66,200 $2.30 $30,452 $4.50 $59,580
2881.1 Dredging and Disposal CY 83,500 $28 $2,338,000 $11 $918,500 $13 $1,085,500
2881.2 Marine Mammal Work Suspension - Dredging Activity HR 20 $2,500 $50,000 $3,000 $60,000 $2,000 $40,000
2896.1 Furnish and Install Mooring Pile, 16 Inch Dia. X 0.500 Inch Thick EA 8 $10,000 $80,000 $18,000 $144,000 $14,000 $112,000
2896.2 Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Pile w/Sheetpile Wings, 24 Inch Dia. X 0.500 Inch Thick EA 113 $30,000 $3,390,000 $25,000 $2,825,000 $32,000 $3,616,000
2896.3 Furnish Bearing Pile, 30 Inch Dia. X 0.750 Inch Thick  LF 6,840 $260 $1,778,400 $170 $1,162,800 $210 $1,436,400
2896.4 Install Bearing Pile, 30 Inch Dia. X 0.750 Inch Thick EA 38 $22,500 $855,000 $25,000 $950,000 $50,000 $1,900,000
2896.5 Install Transient Float Pile, 12.75 Inch Dia. X 0.500 Inch Thick EA 9 $4,000 $36,000 $11,100 $99,900 $4,300 $38,700
2896.6 Contingent Work - Deep Obstruction Removal  CS As Reqd $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000
2896.7 SPIN FIN™ Pile Tip EA 36 $5,000 $180,000 $1,100 $39,600 $3,300 $118,800
2896.8 PDA Testing Assistance HR 20 $3,000 $60,000 $2,500 $50,000 $3,200 $64,000
2896.9 Field Splice Owner Furnished Transient Float Pile, 12.75 Inch Dia. EA 9 $1,500 $13,500 $4,000 $36,000 $6,000 $54,000
2896.10 Furnish and Install Open Cutting Shoe, 12.75 Inch Dia. Pile EA 1 $1,500 $1,500 $5,000 $5,000 $2,400 $2,400
2896.11 Field Splice, 24 Inch or 30 Inch Dia. Pile EA 6 $3,500 $21,000 $20,000 $120,000 $12,500 $75,000
2896.12 Marine Mammal Work Suspension - Pile Activity HR 20 $3,000 $60,000 $3,500 $70,000 $3,200 $64,000
5120.1 Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Waler LF 604 $550 $332,200 $1,300 $785,200 $1,500 $906,000
5120.2 Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Bearing Cap and Connection EA 19 $22,500 $427,500 $22,000 $418,000 $22,500 $427,500
5120.3 Wave Barrier Amenities - Fenders, Ladders, Navigation Aid Mount & Owner-Furnished Tower LS All Reqd $38,000 $38,000 $40,000 $40,000 $36,000 $36,000

TOTAL BASE BID PRICE $14,284,980 $15,986,842 $15,959,330

ADDITIVE ALTERNATE A -DREDGING EXISTING INNER HARBOR BASIN
Item Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount

1505.1-A Mobilization LS All Reqd $26,755 $26,755 $595,000 $595,000 $135,000 $135,000
2060.1-A Demolition, Salvage and Disposal LS All Reqd $15,000 $15,000 $20,000 $20,000 $11,000 $11,000
2205.1-A Class II Armor Rock CY 370 $70 $25,900 $200 $74,000 $105 $38,850
2702.1-A Construction Surveying LS All Reqd $25,000 $25,000 $50,000 $50,000 $26,000 $26,000
2881.1-A Dredging and Disposal CY 16,140 $30 $484,200 $22 $355,080 $50 $807,000

TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE A PRICE $576,855 $1,094,080 $1,017,850

ADDITIVE ALTERNATE B -PILE ANODES
Item Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount

1505.1-B Mobilization LS All Reqd $36,200 $36,200 $1,000 $1,000 $42,200 $42,200
2996.1-B Supply Anode EA 380 $475 $180,500 $404 $153,520 $400 $152,000
2996.2-B Install Anode EA 380 $425 $161,500 $440 $167,200 $725 $275,500
2996.3-B Field Photos, Continuity, Potential Readings and Report LS All Reqd $20,000 $20,000 $50,000 $50,000 $1,200 $1,200

TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE B PRICE $398,200 $371,720 $470,900

ADDITIVE ALTERNATE C - ADDITIONAL WAVE BARRIER, PILE ANODES & DREDGING
Item Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount Unit Cost Amount

1505.1-C Mobilization LS All Reqd $30,531 $30,531 $1,000 $1,000 $9,500 $9,500
2205.1-C Class II Armor Rock CY 160 $70 $11,200 $200 $32,000 $130 $20,800
2702.1-C Construction Surveying LS All Reqd $10,000 $10,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000
2881.1-C Dredging and Disposal CY 7,020 $28 $196,560 $11 $77,220 $8.30 $58,266
2896.2-C Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Pile w/Sheetpile Wings, 24 Inch Dia. X 0.500 Inch Thick EA 6 $30,000 $180,000 $23,000 $138,000 $26,500 $159,000
2896.3-C Furnish Bearing Pile, 30 Inch Dia. X 0.750 Inch Thick  LF 360 $260 $93,600 $170 $61,200 $150 $54,000
2896.4-C Install Bearing Pile, 30 Inch Dia. X 0.750 Inch Thick EA 2 $22,500 $45,000 $20,000 $40,000 $45,000 $90,000
2896.7-C SPIN FIN™ Pile Tip EA 2 $5,000 $10,000 $1,100 $2,200 $3,300 $6,600
2996.1-C Supply Anode EA 24 $475 $11,400 $404 $9,696 $400 $9,600
2996.2-C Install Anode EA 24 $425 $10,200 $440 $10,560 $700 $16,800
2996.3-C Field Photos, Continuity, Potential Readings and Report LS All Reqd $2,000 $2,000 $5,000 $5,000 $500 $500
5120.1-C Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Waler LF 33 $550 $18,150 $1,300 $42,900 $1,300 $42,900
5120.2-C Furnish and Install Wave Barrier Bearing Cap and Connection EA 1 $22,500 $22,500 $24,000 $24,000 $20,000 $20,000

TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE C PRICE $641,141 $444,776 $488,966

HAINES BOROUGH
PORTAGE COVE HARBOR EXPANSION

BID SUMMARY
Bid Opening: October 25, 2016

Engineer's Estimate Kiewit Infra. West Co. Manson Const. Co.



Haines Borough
BOROUGH ASSEMBLY

ACTION REQUEST 

DATE:   27Oct2016

TO:    Borough Assembly

FROM: PHAC Board

ACTION:
Motion - Recommend to the Assembly that the base bid and all add alternates of the 
South Portage Cove Harbor Expansion Project be awarded to Pacific Pile & Marine.

Motion by Don Turner Jr. and seconded by Fred Gray.

Motion passed with Turner, Gray, Pardee, and Rostad in favor.
None apposed.

RATIONALE:
PPM was shown to be the low bidder during the bid opening held on 25Oct2016. Their 
base bid and all three add alternates came to $13.2 million.
Borough officials estimate that approximately $15 million is available for construction 
costs. This leaves approximately $1.7 million of unused grant funds.
The PHAC would like to see all three add alternates awarded, giving priority to add 
alternate A and B.

BOARD REQUEST: 
Award the South Portage Cove Harbor Expansion contract to Pacific Pile & Marine, to 
include all three add alternates.

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Bell, Harbormaster
    



Haines Borough
BOROUGH ASSEMBLY

ACTION REQUEST 

DATE:   27Oct2016

TO:    Borough Assembly

FROM: PHAC Board

ACTION:
Motion - Recommend to the Assembly that all remaining harbor expansion grand funds 
(after phase one is complete) are spent towards additional moorage floats for the new 
harbor basin.

Motion by Don Turner Jr. and seconded by Fred Gray.

Motion passed with Turner, Gray, Pardee, and Rostad in favor.
None apposed.

RATIONALE:  
It is estimated that $1.7 million will remain from the harbor expansion grants once phase 
one of the project is complete. The PHAC would like to see any leftover funds spent 
towards additional moorage floats. PHAC recommends this because it is felt that the 
lack of additional floats was one large concern of the public in relation to the expansion 
plans. PHAC also recognizes that the sooner the floats are installed, the sooner 
additional revenue can be realized.

BOARD REQUEST: 
All remaining harbor expansion grand funds are spent towards additional moorage floats 
for the new harbor basin.

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Bell, Harbormaster
    



Haines Borough
Assembly Agenda Bill

Agenda Bill No.:  
Assembly Meeting Date:  

Business Item Description: Attachments:
Subject:

Originator:

Originating Department:

Date Submitted:

Full Title/Motion:

Administrative Recommendation:

Fiscal Impact:

Expenditure Required Amount Budgeted Appropriation Required Projected Impact to Future 
Operating Budgets

$ $ $

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Review:
Comp Plan Goals/Objectives:

Consistent: Yes     No

Summary Statement:

Referral:
Referred to: Referral Date:
Recommendation: Meeting Date:

Assembly Action:
Meeting Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s):

Postponed to Date:

 
 

16-691
11/8/16

Cove Interpretive Trail Project ($39,341)

Director of Public Facilities

Public Facilities

11/3/16

1) Resolution 16-11-693
2) Corvus Design fee proposal
3) RFP public notice
4) Request for Proposals
5) Corvus Design proposal

Motion: Adopt Resolution 16-11-693.

The Director of Public Facilities recommends adoption of this resolution.

39,341 45,000

Objective 4B, page 144

The Portage Cove Interpretive Trail and Harbor Park Conceptual Designs request for proposals sought licensed
landscape architects and/or design firms for conceptual designs of an interpretive trail around Portage Cove, including
a harbor park adjacent to the planned parking facility. The Borough obtained three responsive proposals, from 1)
Corvus Design; 2) proHNS; and 3) Sustainable Design Group.

The proposals were scored by a committee, and Corvus Design received the highest score. That proposal is included
as an attachment to this agenda bill. All other proposals can be viewed at:
http://www.hainesalaska.gov/ports/portage-cove-interpretive-trail-and-harbor-park-conceptual-designs

0

11/8/16

Contract with Corvus Design for the Portage



HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA
RESOLUTION No. 16-11-693

A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly authorizing the 
Borough Manager to execute a contract with Corvus Design for the 
Portage Cove Interpretive Trail and Harbor Park Conceptual Designs 
project for an amount not to exceed $39,341. 

WHEREAS, the Portage Cove Interpretive Trail and Harbor Park Conceptual Designs request 
for proposals sought licensed landscape architects and/or design firms for conceptual 
designs of an interpretive trail around Portage Cove, including a harbor park adjacent to the 
planned parking facility; and

WHEREAS, the concepts were to include research, analysis, cost estimating, and 
community outreach; and

WHEREAS, the Borough obtained three responsive proposals, from 1) Corvus Design; 2) 
proHNS; and 3) Sustainable Design Group; and

WHEREAS, responses to the RFP were evaluated and ranked by a review committee; and

WHEREAS, Corvus Design received the highest average score after each member of the 
committee independently scored the proposals; and

WHEREAS, upon notification of its top ranking among the proposers, Corvus Design
submitted a fee proposal at the Borough’s request; and

WHEREAS, the Director of Public Facilities has reviewed the fee proposal and recommends 
contract award; and

WHEREAS, budgeted funds from the Commercial Passenger Vessel Tax are sufficient for 
this work, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Haines Borough Assembly authorizes the 
Borough Manager to execute a contract with Corvus Design for the Portage Cove 
Interpretive Trail and Harbor Park Conceptual Designs project for an amount not to exceed 
$39,341.

Adopted by a duly-constituted quorum of the Haines Borough Assembly on this ___ day of 
__________, 2016.

      ___________________________
        Janice Hill, Mayor 

Attest:  

_________________________________
Julie Cozzi, MMC, Borough Clerk

Draft









•
•
•
•
•

•

•

•

•

•

00













 

Request for Proposals 
Portage Cove Interpretive Trail and Harbor Park Conceptual Designs 

 

This Haines Borough request for proposals (RFP) seeks licensed landscape architects and/or design firms for 
conceptual designs of an interpretive trail around Portage Cove, including a harbor park adjacent to the planned 
parking facility in Haines, Alaska. The concepts shall include research, analysis, cost estimating, and community 
outreach. The range of available funding for this work is $25,000 to $40,000.

This RFP does not commit the Haines Borough (hereinafter “Borough”) to enter into a contract, nor does it 
obligate the Borough to pay for any costs incurred in the preparation and submission of a proposal or 
negotiations for or in anticipation of any contract. The Borough reserves the right at its sole discretion: to make 
selections, to reject any or all submissions, to issue subsequent RFPs, to remedy technical errors in the RFP 
process, and to enter into a contract with one or more consultants for the provision of any, all, or some of the 
services described herein. The full RFP can be viewed at http://www.hainesalaska.gov/rfps.

Questions
All communication relative to proposals shall be directed to:
Haines Borough, P.O. Box 1209, Haines, Alaska 99827
Attention: Brad Ryan, Director of Public Facilities
Telephone: (907) 314-0648
Fax: (907) 766-2716
Email: bryan@haines.ak.us

No oral interpretation concerning this RFP will be made. Requests for interpretation must be made in writing 
and mailed, emailed, or faxed at least four (4) business days prior to the submittal deadline.

Submission of Proposals
Deadline for proposals is 2:00 pm, Wednesday, October 5, 2016. Submissions received after the deadline 
will not be considered.

Proposals may be hand-delivered, mailed, or express delivered. Submissions must be clearly marked “Portage 
Cove Interpretive Trail” and submitted to:

Mailing Address:
Attn: Office of the Borough Clerk
Haines Borough
P.O. Box 1209
Haines, AK 99827

Physical Address:
Haines Borough
Borough Clerk’s Office
103 Third Ave. S
Haines, AK 99827

The Borough reserves the right to reject any and all submittals, to waive any informalities or technicalities, and 
to negotiate with any responder to this RFP it deems to be the best qualified.  

Posted 9/6/16 



1

This Haines Borough request for proposals (RFP) seeks licensed landscape architects and/or 
design firms for conceptual designs of an interpretive trail around Portage Cove, including a 
harbor park adjacent to the planned parking facility in Haines, Alaska.  The concepts shall 
include research, analysis, cost estimating, and community outreach.  The range of 
available funding for this work is $25,000 to $40,000. 
 
This RFP does not commit the Haines Borough (hereinafter “Borough”) to enter into a 
contract, nor does it obligate the Borough to pay for any costs incurred in the preparation 
and submission of  a proposal or negotiations for or in anticipation of any contract. The 
Borough reserves the right at its sole discretion: to make selections, to reject any or all 
submissions, to issue subsequent RFPs, to remedy technical errors in the RFP process, and 
to enter into a contract with one or more consultants for the provision of any, all, or some 
of the services described herein. 

 
 

 
 

Haines Borough 
Request for Proposals 

Portage Cove Interpretive Trail and Harbor Park 
Conceptual Designs 



2

Questions  
All communication relative to proposals shall be directed to: 

Haines Borough, P.O. Box 1209, Haines, Alaska 99827 
Attention:  Brad Ryan, Director of Public Facilities 
Telephone: (907) 314-0648 
Fax:  (907) 766-2716 
Email: bryan@haines.ak.us 

No oral interpretation concerning this RFP will be made. Requests for interpretation must be 
made in writing and mailed, emailed, or faxed at least four (4) business days prior to the 
submittal deadline. 

Submission of Proposals 
Deadline for proposals is :00 pm, , , 2016. Submissions 
received after the deadline will not be considered. 

Proposals may be hand-delivered, mailed, or express delivered. Submissions must be 
clearly marked “Portage Cove Interpretive Trail” and submitted to: 

Mailing Address: 
Attn: Office of the Borough Clerk 
Haines Borough 
P.O. Box 1209 
Haines, AK 99827 

Physical Address: 
Haines Borough 
Borough Clerk’s Office 
103 Third Ave. S 
Haines, AK 99827 

The Borough reserves the right to reject any and all submittals, to waive any informalities 
or technicalities, and to negotiate with any responder to this RFP it deems to be the best 
qualified. 

Services to be Provided 
The Haines Borough is expanding its harbor, with the project’s first phase expected to run 
through June 2018. The Borough is seeking Portage Cove Interpretive Trail and Harbor Park 
Conceptual Designs to properly route pedestrians through the harbor area, tie the harbor 
project to a waterfront trail, and help inform the location of a future harbor park. The trail 
will provide safe passage for residents and visitors along the waterfront and provide a 
cultural and environmental experience through interpretive signs. The designs should also 
identify potential parking areas near the cruise ship dock for tour vehicles to pick up and 
drop off passengers. Designs shall be completed no later than February 17, 2017. 

The selected consultant will develop conceptual designs of a Portage Cove Interpretive Trail 
from the Port Chilkoot campground to Picture Point (see attached map):

1. The conceptual designs will include a harbor park located on the southeast end of the
new harbor parking lot. 

2. The interpretive trail and harbor park concepts will be vetted through a series of no
fewer than four public meetings hosted by the selected firm in Haines. 



3

3. The consultants will present concepts at each of the public meetings and use 
community input to drive the development of a final conceptual design. 

4. A final conceptual design should be presented to the Borough at an additional public 
meeting in Haines that incorporates public and Borough feedback. 

5. The final conceptual design will include rough cost estimates sufficient for decision 
making and pursuing outside funding. 

 
Required Proposal Contents 

1. Letter of Transmittal. 
 

2. Description of how the consultant(s) will evaluate community and Borough needs 
and tailor conceptual designs to meet these needs. 
 

3. Description of the design team and its ability to meet the above needs. 
 

4. Process for background research and data analysis to inform the conceptual designs. 
 

5. Overall timeline and completion date for conceptual designs. 
 

6. Qualification Statement (see below). 
 
Qualification Statement Contents 
Qualification statements must contain responses corresponding to each numbered item 
identified in the below list at a minimum. 
 

1) Consultant name (or names if joint effort) and applicable licenses. 
 

2) The number of years the consultant has been in business and a brief history of the 
firm. 

 
3) Experience with similar projects, including ability to deliver cost-effective solutions. 

 
4) Current rate of professional fees with breakdown of personnel costs, reimbursable 

expenses and other potential costs. Consultant should assume at least five public 
meetings to be held in Haines. 

 
5) Past record of performance on similar contracts including quality of work, timeliness 

and cost control. Provide names and telephone numbers of five other client contacts 
for reference purposes. 

 
6) Description of consultant’s experience working with communities similar in size and 

character to the Haines Borough. 
 
Evaluation and Selection Process 
Responses to the RFP will be evaluated and ranked by a review committee. Each member of 
the committee will independently score the proposals. Based off the score given, each 
proposer will be ranked. The highest score shall be given a ranking of “1”, next highest “2”, 
and so on. Once all proposals have been given a ranking, the committee will come together 
and discuss results. If the committee has a clear leader, it may declare a successful 
proposer and forward the recommendation to the Borough Manager. If a winning proposer 
is not immediately identified, the committee reserves the right to perform oral interviews. If 
required, oral interviews would be scheduled within two weeks after the due date of the 



4

proposals. Final selection of a proposer would then be made after oral interviews of the top 
applicant(s) and an agreed upon schedule of fees and timeline. If a design firm is selected 
and negotiations reveal it needs more funding than is available, the selection committee will 
terminate negotiation and move on to another design firm. A Haines Business License is 
required prior to contract award. 
 
Scoring for the selection process will be based on the following criteria (100 points total): 

1) Firm’s Overall Qualifications and Experience (20 points) 
- The experience and qualifications of the consultant and the personnel to 

be assigned to this project. 
 

2) Past Performance (15 points) 
- The consultant’s performance on past Haines Borough projects, 

performance with similar communities and projects, and/or performance 
with private industry. Performance will be evaluated according to the 
applicant’s past ability to meet project deadlines, budget restrictions, 
quality of job completed, and overall customer satisfaction. 

 
3) Draft Scope of Work (30 points) 

- Methodology to complete and present conceptual design options, 
culminating to a final conceptual design. 

 
4) Capacity of the Firm (10 points) 

- The proposer’s ability to perform the desired services based on current 
workload, number and type of employees, and outside contractors 
proposed to complete needed tasks. 

 
5) Firm’s Experience with Public Meetings and User Groups (10 points) 

- Firm’s ability to coordinate between multiple parties and provide clear and 
concise explanations for the direction of the project. 

 
6) Quality of Proposal (8 points) 

- Proposal should be clear and include all required information outlined in 
this RFP. Proposal should be responsive to the needs of the project and be 
well informed. 

 
7) Local Bidder Points (7 points) 

- Firms with offices that reside in the Borough will be awarded an additional 
7 points. The proposal will either be awarded all or none of the local 
bidder points, based on whether this qualification is met. 



Cruise Ship Dock

Small Boat Harbor

Picture Point

Portage Cove Campground

0 0.25 0.50.125
Miles

Legend

Waterfront Trail

Cruise Ship Tour Parking

Haines Borough Waterfront Trail

.
































































	Agenda 11/8/16
	3-Minutes
	Regular 10/25/16
	Special 11/1/16

	7A-Ord 446 Comp Plan Review Cycle - AB 16-689
	Ordinance 16-10-446

	8A-Manager's Report
	8B-Finance Director Report
	8C-Museum Director's Report
	9A-Minutes - Library Board 8/17/16 APPROVED
	11A1-Rez 691 Bank Signatories (new Deputy Mayor)
	11A2-Rez 692 Harbor Expansion - AB 16-690
	Resolution 16-11-692
	Bid Solicitation
	Bid Results
	PHAC Action Requests

	11A3-Rez 693 Harbor Trail - AB 16-691
	Resolution 16-11-693
	Corvus Design Fee Proposal
	RFP & Public Notice
	Corvus Design Proposal




